
 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

LEEDS - CITY COUNCIL - 12/14/20  
Mon, Dec 14, 2020 6:00 PM - 8:00 PM (CST)  
 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/969367413  
 
You can also dial in using your phone.  
United States: +1 (571) 317-3122  
 
Access Code: 969-367-413  
 
 
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first 
meeting starts: https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/969367413 

 

December 14, 2020 @ 6:00 PM 

 

 
CALL COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL / INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Anyone wishing to address the Council during the Public Comment section of the meeting must sign in 
with the City Clerk to provide their name and address. 

1. Ordinance 2020-12-01: Consider Approval of Spectrum Franchise Renewal  

2. B20-000001: Request for an Alcoholic Beverage License to Virginia Abu Al Maati, /dba/ 
Mountainview Package Store at 8525 Whitfield Avenue; Suite 101 

3. B20-000003: Request for an Alcoholic Beverage License to Buc-ee's Alabama II, LLC, trade 
name Buc-ee's #43 at 6900 Buc-ee's Boulevard 

4. R20-002476 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7310 PARKWAY DR 

5. R20-002372 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7114 TRAMWAY CRT 

6. R20-002225 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 1332 BEECH ST 

APPROVE COUNCIL MINUTES 

7. Minutes from November 16, 2020 

REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

8. Mayor's Report: Mayor David Miller 

9. Police Department: Chief Atkinson 

10. Fire Department: Chief Parsons 

11. Library: Library Director Carden 

1

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/969367413
tel:+15713173122,,969367413
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/969367413


12. Municipal Court: Magistrate Roberts 

13. Development Services Department: City Administrator Watson 

14. Public Works Department: Public Works Director Warren 

OLD BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 

15. Ordinance 2020-12-01 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 
Consider Approval of Spectrum Franchise Renewal  

16. Ordinance 2020-12-02 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 
Consider amending Ordinance 2020-06-02 to update the principal payments for USDA project 

17. Ordinance 2020-12-03 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 
Consider De-annexation Policy 

18. Resolution 2020-12-01 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 
Consider Approval of Alcohol License to Mountainview Package Store at 8525 Whitfield 
Avenue 

19. Resolution 2020-12-02 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 
Consider Business License Tax Refund Request 

20. Resolution 2020-12-03 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 
Consider declaring certain property surplus and authorizing its sale 

21. Resolution 2020-12-04: Consider Approval of Alcohol License to Buc-ee's #43 at 6900 Buc-
ee's Boulevard 

22. Resolution 2020-12-05: Consider City Employee Charity Drive Authorization 

23. Resolution 2020-12-06: Consider Conveyance of Property to Jefferson County Per 1998 
Unification Agreement 

24. Resolution 2020-12-07: Consider Purchase of Cedar Grove Cemetery Lots 

25. R20-002476 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7310 PARKWAY DR 

26. R20-002372 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7114 TRAMWAY CRT 

27. R20-002225 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 1332 BEECH ST 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
All comments are to be limited to 2 minutes 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for Council 
meetings should notify the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 205-699-2585. 

2



File Attachments for Item:

1. Ordinance 2020-12-01: Consider Approval of Spectrum Franchise Renewal

3



 
 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON AND PROPOSED ENACTMENT OF AN 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEEDS 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Leeds City Council will hold a public hearing on 

Monday, December 7, 2020, at 6:00 p.m., on a proposed Cable Franchise Agreement renewal 

between the City of Leeds and Comcast of Spectrum Southeast, LLC. Citizens will be allowed to 

make comment at that time.  At the conclusion of the public hearing, the City Council intends to 

adopt and enact the following ordinance: 

 

 

 

 

 

CABLE TELEVISION FRANCHISE ORDINANCE 

 

 

FOR  

 

 

LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

 

AND 

 

 

SPECTRUM SOUTHEAST, LLC 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



 
 

 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1.  SHORT TITLE AND DEFINITIONS ......................................................................1 

1. Short Title ....................................................................................................1 

2. Definitions....................................................................................................2 

SECTION 2.  GRANT OF AUTHORITY AND GENERAL PROVISIONS.................................5 

1. Grant of Franchise........................................................................................5 

2. Grant of Nonexclusive Authority.................................................................5 

3. Franchise Term ............................................................................................6 

4. Previous Franchises. ....................................................................................6 

5. Compliance with Applicable Laws, Resolutions and Ordinances ...............6 

6. Written Notice ..............................................................................................6 

SECTION 3.  CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS ...........................................................................7 

1. Registration, Permits Construction Codes and Cooperation........................7 

2. Minimum Interference .................................................................................8 

3. Disturbance or damage……………………………………………………8 

4. Temporary Relocation .................................................................................9 

5. Emergency ...................................................................................................9 

6. Tree Trimming .............................................................................................9 

7. Protection of facilities ..................................................................................9 

  8. Installation records………………………………………………………..9 

9.         Locating facilities…………………………………………………………9 

10.       Relocation delays .......................................................................................10 

11. Interference with City Facilities……………………………………... 10 

12.       Safety Requirements……………………………………………………. 10 

 

SECTION 4.  DESIGN PROVISIONS .........................................................................................10 

 

1. System Upgrade: Minimum Channel CapaCity ........................................10 

2. System Construction 

  3. Interruption of Service 

4. Emergency Alert Capability ......................................................................11 

5. Technical Standards ...................................................................................11 

 

7. FCC Reports...............................................................................................11 

8. Annexation .................................................................................................11 

9. Line Extension ........................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

SERVICE 5. SERVICE PROVISIONS .........................................................................................12 

5



 
 

1. Non-Standard Installations.........................................................................12 

2. Sales Procedures ........................................................................................12 

3. Consumer Protection and Service Standards .............................................12 

4. Subscriber Contracts ..................................................................................15 

5. Refund Policy.............................................................................................17 

6. Late Fees ....................................................................................................16 

 

SECTION 6.   OPERATION AND ADMINISTRATION PROVISIONS ...................................16 

1. Administration of Franchise 

2. Franchise Fee .............................................................................................16 

  3. Discounted Rates………………………………………………………...18 

4. Access to Records ......................................................................................17 

5. Reports to be Filed with City .....................................................................17 

SECTION 7. GENERAL FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS ..............................17 

1. Liability Insurance .....................................................................................17 

2. Indemnification ..........................................................................................18 

SECTION 8. SALE, ABANDONMENT, TRANSFER AND REVOCATION OF FRANCHISE

 19 

1. City’s Right to Revoke...............................................................................19 

2. Procedures for Revocation .........................................................................19 

  3. Removal After Abandonment, Termination or Forfeiture………………21 

4. Franchise Transfer……………………………………………………….21 

SECTION 9. PROTECTION OF INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS ..........................................................20 

1. Discriminatory Practices Prohibited ..........................................................20 

2. Subscriber Privacy .....................................................................................20 

SECTION 10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ......................................................................21 

1. Franchise Renewal .....................................................................................21 

2. Work Performed by Others ........................................................................21 

3. Amendment of Franchise Ordinance .........................................................21 

4. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws.......................................21 

5. Nonenforcement by City ............................................................................21 

6. Rights Cumulative .....................................................................................21 

 

8. Force Majeure ............................................................................................22 

SECTION 11. PUBLICATION EFFECTIVE DATE; ACCEPTANCE AND EXHIBITS ..........22 

1. Publication, Effective Date ........................................................................22 

2. Acceptance .................................................................................................24 

 

EXHIBIT A. FRANCHISE FEE PAYMENT WORKSHEET .............................................    B-1 

EXIBIT B.  GRANTEE COMPLIMENTARY LOCATIONS TO CITY LOCATIONS       B-2 

6



 
 

 

7



 

B-1 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO SPECTRUM SOUTHEAST, LLC, L/K/A 

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS, TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, AND MAINTAIN A 

CABLE SYSTEM IN LEEDS, ALABAMA SETTING FORTH CONDITIONS 

ACCOMPANYING THE GRANT OF THE FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR REGULATION 

AND USE OF THE SYSTEM AND THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND PRESCRIBING 

PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS HEREIN; 

The City Council of Leeds Alabama ordains: 

STATEMENT OF INTENT AND PURPOSE 

City intends, by the adoption of this Franchise, to bring about the further development of a Cable 

System, and the continued operation of it.  Such development can contribute significantly to the 

communication needs and desires of the residents and citizens of City and the public generally.  

Further, City may achieve better utilization and improvement of public services and enhanced 

economic development with the development and operation of a Cable System. 

Adoption of this Franchise is, in the judgment of the City Council, in the best interests of City 

and its residents. 

FINDINGS 

In the review of the request for renewal by Grantee and negotiations related thereto, and as a 

result of a public hearing, the City Council makes the following findings: 

1. Grantee has substantially complied with the material terms of the current Franchise under 

applicable laws; 

 

2. Grantee’s technical ability, financial condition, legal qualifications, and character were 

considered and approved in a full public proceeding after due notice and a reasonable 

opportunity to be heard; 

3. Grantee’s plans for operating the Cable System were considered and found adequate and 

feasible in a full public proceeding after due notice and a reasonable opportunity to be 

heard; 

4. The Franchise granted to Grantee by City complies with the existing applicable state 

statutes, federal laws and regulations; and 

5. The Franchise granted to Grantee is nonexclusive. 

SECTION 1. 

SHORT TITLE AND DEFINITIONS 

 

1. Short Title.  This Franchise Ordinance shall be known and cited as the Cable Television 

Franchise Ordinance. 

8



 

 

2 
 

2. Definitions.  For the purposes of this Franchise, the following terms, phrases, words, and 

their derivations shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Cable Communications 

Policy Act of 1984, as amended from time to time (the “Cable Act”), unless otherwise 

defined herein.  When not inconsistent with the context, words in the singular number 

include the plural number, and words in the plural number include the singular number.  

The word “shall” is always mandatory and not merely directory.  The word “may” is 

directory and discretionary and not mandatory.  Words not defined shall be given their 

common and ordinary meaning. 

a. “Applicable Laws” means any law, statute, charter, ordinance, rule, regulation, 

code, license, certificate, franchise, permit, writ, ruling, award, executive order, 

directive, requirement, injunction (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent), 

judgment, decree or other order issued, executed, entered or deemed applicable by 

any governmental authority. 

b. “Basic Cable Service” means any Service tier which includes the lawful 

retransmission of local television broadcast signals and any public, educational, 

and governmental access programming required by the Franchise to be carried on 

the basic tier.  Basic Cable Service as defined herein shall be the definition set 

forth in 47 U.S.C. § 543(b) (7). 

c. “City Council” means the governing body of Leeds, Alabama. 

d. “Cable Act” shall mean the Cable Communications Act of 1984, as amended, 47 

U.S.C. §§ 521, et. seq. 

e. “Cable Service” or “Service” means (A) the one-way transmission to Subscribers 

of (i) Video Programming or (ii) Other Programming Service, and (B) Subscriber 

interaction, if any, which is required for the selection or use of such Video 

Programming or Other Programming Service.  Cable Service as defined herein 

shall be the definition set forth in 47 U.S.C. § 522(6). 

f. “Cable System” or “System” means a facility, consisting of a set of closed 

transmission paths and associated signal generation, reception, and control 

equipment that is designed to provide Cable Service which includes Video 

Programming and which is provided to multiple Subscribers within a community, 

but such term does not include: 

i. a facility that serves only to retransmit the television signals of one (1) or 

more television broadcast stations; 

ii. a facility that serves Subscribers without using any public Right-of-Way; 

iii. a facility of common carrier which is subject, in whole or in part, to the 

provisions of 47 U.S.C. § 201 et seq., except that such facility shall be 

considered a Cable System (other than for purposes of 47 U.S.C. § 541(c)) 

to the extent such facility is used in the transmission of Video 

9



 

 

3 
 

Programming directly to Subscribers, unless the extent of such use is 

solely to provide interactive on-demand services; 

iv. an open video system that complies with 47 U.S.C. § 573; or 

v. any facilities of any electric utility used solely for operating its electric 

utility systems. 

vi. Cable System as defined herein shall be the definition set forth in 47 

U.S.C. § 522(7). 

g. “Channel” or “Cable Channel” means a portion of the electromagnetic frequency 

spectrum which is used in a Cable System and which is capable of delivering a 

television Channel as defined by the FCC.  Cable Channel as defined herein shall 

be the definition set forth in 47 U.S.C. § 522(4). 

h. “City” or “Grantor” means Leeds, a municipal corporation, in the State of 

Alabama, acting by and through its City Council, or its lawfully appointed 

designee. 

i. “Drop” means the cable that connects the ground block on the Subscriber’s 

residence to the nearest distribution point of the System. 

j. “FCC” means the Federal Communications Commission and any legally 

appointed, designated or elected agent or successor. 

k. “Franchise” or “Cable Franchise” means this franchise ordinance and the 

regulatory and contractual relationship established hereby. 

l. “Franchise Fee” includes any tax, fee, or assessment of any kind imposed by the 

City or other governmental entity on Grantee or Subscriber, or both, solely 

because of their status as such.  It does not include any tax, fee, or assessment of 

general applicability (including any such tax, fee, or assessment imposed on both 

utilities and cable operators or their services but not including a tax, fee, or 

assessment which is unduly discriminatory against cable operators or cable 

Subscribers); capital costs which are required by the Franchise to be incurred by 

Grantee for public, educational, or governmental access facilities; requirements or 

charges incidental to the awarding or enforcing of the Franchise, including 

payments for bonds, security funds, letters of credit, insurance, indemnification, 

penalties, or liquidated damages; or any fee imposed under Title 17 of the United 

States Code.  Franchise Fee defined herein shall be the definition set forth in 47 

U.S.C. § 542(g). 

m. “Grantee” is Spectrum Southeast, LLC ("Charter Communications"), its lawful 

successors, transferees or assignees. 

n. “Gross Revenue” means any and all revenue derived by Grantee from the 

operation of its Cable System to provide Cable Service within the City including, 

10



 

 

4 
 

but not limited to, 1) all Cable Service fees, 2) Franchise Fees, 3) late fees and, 

43) Installation and reconnection fees, 54) upgrade and downgrade fees, 65) local, 

state and national advertising revenue, 76) home shopping commissions, 87) 

equipment rental fees, and 98) written or electronic Channel guide revenue.  The 

term “Gross Revenue” shall not include launch fees, bad debts or any taxes or 

fees on Services furnished by Grantee imposed upon Subscribers by any 

municipality, state or other governmental unit, credits, refunds and any amounts 

collected from Subscribers for deposits. City and Grantee acknowledge and agree 

that Grantee will maintain its books and records in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

o. “Installation” means any connection of the System from distribution cable to the 

point of connection including Standard Installations and custom Installations with 

the Subscriber Converter or other terminal equipment. 

p. “Normal Business Hours” means those hours during which most similar 

businesses in City are open to serve customers.  In all cases, “Normal Business 

Hours” must include some evening hours, at least one (1) night per week and/or 

some weekend hours.  Normal Business Hours as defined herein shall be the 

definition set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 76.309. 

q. “Normal Operating Conditions” means those Service conditions which are within 

the control of Grantee.  Those conditions which are not within the control of 

Grantee include, but are not limited to, natural disasters, civil disturbances, power 

outages, telephone network outages, and severe or unusual weather conditions.  

Those conditions which are ordinarily within the control of Grantee include, but 

are not limited to, special promotions, pay-per-view events, rate increases, regular 

peak or seasonal demand periods, and maintenance or upgrade of the Cable 

System.  Normal Operating Conditions as defined herein shall be the definition 

set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 76.309. 

r. “Other Programming Service” means information that a cable operator makes 

available to all Subscribers generally.  Other Programming Services as defined 

herein shall be the definition set forth in 47 U.S.C. § 522 (14). 

s. “Person” is any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, company, 

limited liability entity or other legal entity. 

t. “Right-of-Way” or “Rights-of-Way” means the area on, below, or above any real 

property in City in which the City has an interest including, but not limited to any 

street, road, highway, alley, sidewalk, parkway, utility easements or any other 

place, area, or real property owned by or under the control of City which are 

dedicated for compatible use. 

u. “Right-of-Way Ordinance” means any ordinance or other applicable code 

requirements regarding regulation, management and use of Rights-of-Way in 

City, including permitting requirements. 

11



 

 

5 
 

v. “Service Area” or “Franchise Area” means the entire geographic area within the 

City as it is now constituted or may in the future be constituted. 

w. “Service Interruption” means the loss of picture or sound on one (1) or more 

Cable Channels.  Service Interruption as defined herein shall be the definition set 

forth in 47 C.F.R. § 76.309.  

x. “Standard Installation” means any residential Installation which can be completed 

using an aerial Drop of one hundred twenty-five (125) feet or less. 

y. “Subscriber” means any Person who receives broadcast programming distributed 

by a Cable System and does not further distribute it.  Subscriber as defined herein 

shall be the definition set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 76.5(ee). 

z. “Video Programming” means programming provided by, or generally considered 

comparable to programming provided by, a television broadcast station.  Video 

Programming as defined herein shall be the definition set forth in 47 U.S.C. 

§ 522(20). 

SECTION 2. 

GRANT OF AUTHORITY AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

1. Grant of Franchise.  This Franchise is granted pursuant to the terms and conditions 

contained herein.   

2. Grant of Nonexclusive Authority. 

a. The Grantee shall have the right and privilege, subject to the permitting and other 

lawful requirements of City ordinance, rule or procedure, to construct, erect, and 

maintain, in, upon, along, across, above, over and under the Rights-of-Way in 

City a Cable System and shall have the right and privilege to provide Cable 

Service under the Franchise Agreement.  The System constructed and maintained 

by Grantee or its agents shall not interfere with other uses of the Rights-of-Way.  

Grantee shall make use of existing poles and other above and below ground 

facilities available to Grantee to the extent it is technically and economically 

feasible to do so. 

b. This Franchise shall be nonexclusive, and City reserves the right to grant use of 

said Rights-of-Way to any Person at any time during the period of this Franchise 

for the provision of Cable Service. 

c. If any other wireline provider of cable services or video services (without regard to 

the technology used to deliver such services) is lawfully authorized by the Grantor 

to provide such services using facilities located wholly or partly in the public rights-

of-way of the Grantor, the Grantor shall within thirty (30) days of a written request 

from Grantee, modify this Franchise to insure that the obligations applicable to 

Grantee are no more burdensome than those imposed on the new competing 

provider.  If the Grantor fails to make modifications consistent with this 

12



 

 

6 
 

requirement, Grantee’s Franchise shall be deemed so modified thirty (30) days after 

the Grantee’s initial written notice.  Nothing herein shall be deemed a waiver of 

any remedies available to Grantee under Applicable Laws, including the right to 

seek judicial review to mandate Grantor amend the franchise to ensure competitive 

equity between similarly situated competitive providers. 

 

3. Franchise Term.  This Franchise shall be in effect for a period of ten (10) years from the 

date of execution by City, unless sooner renewed, revoked or terminated as herein 

provided. 

4. Previous Franchises.  Upon acceptance by Grantee as required by Section 11.2 herein, 

this Franchise shall supersede and replace any previous ordinance or other authorization 

granting a franchise to Grantee.  

5. Compliance with Applicable Laws, Resolutions and Ordinances. 

a. The terms of this Franchise shall define the contractual rights and obligations of 

Grantee with respect to the provision of Cable Service and operation of the 

System in City.  However, Grantee shall at all times during the term of this 

Franchise be subject to all lawful exercise of the police power, of the City.  This 

Franchise may also be modified or amended with the mutual written consent of 

City and Grantee as provided in Section 10.3 herein. 

b. Grantor shall at all times be subject to and comply with all Applicable Laws with 

respect to this Franchise.  

c. Grantee shall comply with the terms of any City ordinance or regulation of 

general applicability which addresses usage of the Rights-of-Way within City, 

provided that it does not discriminate between different users of the Rights-of-

Way.  

d. In the event of any conflict between this Franchise and any City ordinance or 

regulation which addresses usage of the Rights-of-Way, the terms of this 

Franchise shall govern, provided however Grantee shall at all times comply with 

City ordinances of general applicability promulgated by the City in accordance 

with its police powers. 

6. Written Notice.  All notices, reports, or demands required to be given in writing under 

this Franchise shall be sent via registered or certified mail or shall be deemed to be given 

when delivered personally to any officer of Grantee or City Clerk or forty-eight (48) 

hours after it is deposited in the United States mail in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid 

thereon, addressed to the party to whom notice is being given, as follows: 

If to City:  City of Leeds 

   Attn: Mayor 

  1400 9th St NE 

  Leeds, AL 35094  

  

13



 

 

7 
 

 If to Grantee: Charter Communications 

  601 Massachusetts Avenue, NW, Ste 400  

  Washington, DC 20001 

           

 With nonbinding courtesy copies to:  

 

                                     Charter Communications 

                                                Attn: Government Relations Director 

  151 London Parkway  

  Birmingham, AL 35211 

 

Such addresses may be changed by either party upon notice to the other party given as 

provided in this section. 

 

SECTION 3. 

CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 

 

1. Registration, Permits, Construction Codes, and Cooperation. 

a. Grantee shall comply with the construction requirements of local, state and 

federal laws. 

b. Grantee agrees to obtain a permit as required by City prior to removing, 

abandoning, relocating or reconstructing, if necessary, any portion of its facilities.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, City understands and acknowledges there may be 

instances when Grantee is required to make repairs, in compliance with federal or 

state laws, that are of an emergency nature.  Grantee will notify City prior to such 

repairs, if practicable, and will obtain the necessary permits in a reasonable time 

after notification to City. 

c. City may issue reasonable policy guidelines to all grantees to establish procedures 

for determining how to control issuance of engineering permits to multiple 

grantees for the use of the same Rights-of-Way for their facilities.  Grantee shall 

cooperate with City in establishing such policy and comply, to the extent 

technically feasible, with the procedures established by the Mayor or his or her 

designee to coordinate the issuance of multiple engineering permits in the same 

Right-of-Way segments. 

d. Failure to obtain permits or comply with permit requirements shall subject 

Grantee to all enforcement remedies available to City under Applicable Laws or 

this Franchise. 

e. Grantee shall have the opportunity to meet with developers and be present at pre-

construction meetings to ensure that the newly constructed Cable System facilities 

are installed in new developments, within the City where extension of service is 

economically feasible at Grantee’s discretion, in a timely manner upon written 

notification of such meetings to the Grantee. 

14



 

 

8 
 

f. If requested by the City, Grantee shall meet with the City within 90 days to hold 

an annual meeting with City to coordinate construction plans of both parties for 

the upcoming year. 

g.   Subject to Applicable Laws, when City uses its prior superior right to the Rights-

of-Way and public ways, Grantee shall move its property that is located in the 

Rights-of-Way and public ways, at its own cost, to such a location as City  directs. 

Grantee’s System construction shall at all times comply with Applicable Laws, 

which City agrees shall be applied on a nondiscriminatory basis.  Nothing in this 

Franchise shall be construed to prevent City from constructing, maintaining, 

repairing or relocating sewers; grading, paving, maintaining, repairing, relocating 

and/or altering any Right-of-Way; constructing, laying down, repairing, 

maintaining or relocating any water mains; or constructing, maintaining, 

relocating, or repairing any sidewalk or other public work.  

2. Minimum Interference.   

a. Grantee shall use commercially reasonable efforts to give reasonable prior notice 

to any adjacent private property owners who will be negatively affected or 

impacted by Grantee’s work in the Rights-of-Way. 

b. All transmission and distribution structures, lines and equipment erected by 

Grantee shall be located so as to cause minimum interference with the 

unencumbered use of Rights-of-Way and other public places and minimum 

interference with the rights and reasonable convenience of property owners who 

adjoin any of the Rights-of-Way and public places. 

3. Disturbance or damage.  Any and all Rights-of-Way, or public or private property, which 

are disturbed or damaged during the construction, repair, replacement, relocation, 

operation, maintenance, expansion, extension or reconstruction of the System shall be 

promptly and fully restored by Grantee, at its expense, to a condition as good as that 

prevailing prior to Grantee’s work, as determined by City.  If Grantee shall fail to 

promptly perform the restoration required herein, after written request of City and a thirty 

(30) day opportunity to satisfy that request, City shall have the right to put the Rights-of-

Way back into condition as good as that prevailing prior to Grantee’s work.  In the event 

City determines that Grantee is responsible for such disturbance or damage, Grantee shall 

be obligated to fully reimburse City for such restoration within thirty (30) days after its 

receipt of City’s invoice thereof. 

4. Temporary Relocation.   

a. At any time during the period of the Franchise, Grantee shall, at its own expense, 

protect, support, temporarily disconnect, relocate or remove any of its property 

when, in the opinion of City, (i) the same is required by reason of traffic 

conditions, public safety, Rights-of-Way vacation, freeway or Rights-of-Way 

construction, alteration to or establishment of any Rights-of-Way or any facility 

within the Rights-of-Way, sidewalk, or other public place, including but not 

15



 

 

9 
 

limited to, installation of sewers, drains, waterlines, power lines, traffic signal 

lines or transportation facilities; or (ii) a City project or activity makes 

disconnection, removal, or relocation necessary or less expensive for City. 

b. Grantee shall, on request of any Person holding a permit to move a building, 

temporarily raise or lower its wires to permit the movement of such buildings.  

The expense of such temporary removal or raising or lowering of wires shall be 

paid by the Person requesting the same, and Grantee shall have the authority to 

require such payment in advance. Grantee shall be given not less than ten (10) 

days advance notice to arrange such temporary wire alterations. 

5. Emergency.  Whenever, in case of fire or other emergency, it becomes necessary in the 

judgment of the Mayor, police chief, fire chief, or their delegates, to remove or damage 

any of Grantee’s facilities, no charge shall be made by Grantee against City for 

restoration, repair or damages. Grantor is aware that the communication facilities of the 

Grantee can and does transport emergency required communications such as phone and 

internet life monitoring services if a representative of the Grantor disconnects or damages 

the facilities of the Grantee,   

6.         Tree Trimming.  Grantee shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Code of                

Ordinances of the City regarding the trimming of any tress on public property or in the 

Rights-of-Way.  

 

7.         Protection of facilities.  Nothing contained in this section shall relieve any Person from 

liability arising out of the failure to exercise reasonable care to avoid damaging Grantee’s 

facilities while performing any work connected with grading, regarding or changing the 

line of any Rights-of-Way or public place or the construction or reconstruction of any 

sewer or water system. 

 

8.         Installation records.  Grantee shall keep accurate Installation records of the location of all 

facilities in the Rights-of-Way and public ways and, upon written request of City, will 

make them available for viewing to City at Grantee’s office or in a mutually agreed upon 

location.  

  

9.         Locating facilities.   

 

             a.        If, during the design process for public improvements, City discovers a 

                                   potential conflict with proposed construction, Grantee shall either: (a) locate 

                                   and, if necessary, expose its facilities in conflict or (b) use a location service under 

                                   contract with City to locate or expose its facilities.  Grantee is obligated to  

                                   furnish the location information in a timely manner, but in no case longer than                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                   thirty (30) days. 

                              

b. City reserves the prior and superior right to lay, construct, erect, install, use, 

operate, repair, replace, remove, relocate, regrade, widen, realign, or maintain any 

Rights-of-Way and public ways, aerial, surface, or subsurface improvement, 

including but not limited to water mains, traffic control conduits, cable and 

16



 

 

10 
 

devices, sanitary or storm sewers, subways, tunnels, bridges, viaducts, or any 

other public construction within the Rights-of-Way of City limits. 

 

10.       Relocation delays.  

In cases where the City undertakes work in the Right-of-Way, the Grantee shall, upon 

reasonable notice from City, relocate its facilities as reasonably necessary to accommodate 

the City’s work.  The Grantee must promptly provide notice to City of any potential delay 

involving relocation of Grantee’s facilities.  If Grantee’s relocation effort so delays 

construction of a public project causing City to be liable for delay damages, Grantee shall 

reimburse City for those damages attributable to the delay created by Grantee, however 

payment by Grantee shall in no way limit Grantee’s right, if any, to seek reimbursement 

for such costs from any third party.  All of Grantee’s relocation work shall be done in strict 

compliance with the rules, regulations and ordinances of the City and any applicable state 

and federal laws.   

11.       Interference with City Facilities.   

The Installation, use and maintenance of the Grantee’s facilities within the Rights-of-Way 

and public ways authorized herein shall be in such a manner as not to interfere with the 

placement, construction, use and maintenance of its Rights-of-Way and public ways, 

Rights-of-Way lighting, water pipes, drains, sewers, traffic signal systems or other systems 

that have been installed, maintained, used or authorized by City. 

12.       Safety Requirements. 

a. Grantee shall at all times employ ordinary and reasonable care and shall install 

 and maintain in use nothing less than commonly accepted methods and devices 

 for preventing failures and accidents which are likely to cause damage or injuries. 

b. Grantee shall install and maintain its System and other equipment in accordance 

with City’s codes and the requirements of the National Electric Safety Code and 

all other applicable FCC, state and local regulations, and in such manner that they 

will not interfere with City communications technology related to health, safety 

and welfare of the residents. 

c. Cable System structures, and lines, equipment and connections in, over, under and 

upon the Rights-of-Way of City, wherever situated or located, shall at all times be 

kept and maintained in good condition, order, and repair so that the same shall not 

menace or endanger the life or property of City or any Person. 

SECTION 4. 

DESIGN PROVISIONS 

 

1. System Upgrade/Construction: Minimum Channel Capacity. 

a. Grantee shall operate and maintain for the term of this Franchise a System 

capable of providing a minimum of 100 Channels.   

17



 

 

11 
 

b. All final programming decisions remain the discretion of Grantee in accordance 

 with this Franchise and pursuant to 47 U.S.C. §§ 531, 542 and 545.  

2. System Construction.  All transmission lines, equipment and structures shall be so 

installed and located as to cause minimum interference with the rights and reasonable 

convenience of property owners and at all times shall be kept and maintained in a safe, 

adequate and substantial condition, and in good order and repair.  The Grantee shall, at all 

times, employ ordinary care and use commonly accepted methods and devices for 

preventing failures and accidents which are likely to cause damage, injuries, or nuisances 

to the public.  Suitable barricades, flags, lights, flares or other devices shall be used at 

such times and places as are reasonably required for the safety of all members of the 

public.  Any poles or other fixtures placed in any public way by the Grantee shall be 

placed in such a manner as not to interfere with the usual travel on such public way. 

3. Interruption of Service. Grantee shall interrupt Service only for good cause and for the 

shortest time possible.  Such interruption shall occur during periods of minimum use of 

the System.  If Service is interrupted for a total period of more than twenty-four (24) 

continuous hours in any thirty (30) day period, Subscribers shall be credited pro rata for 

such interruption. 

4. Emergency Alert Capability.  Grantee shall at all times comply with the Emergency Alert 

System standards pursuant to Title 47, Section 11, Subparts A-E of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, as may be amended or modified from time to time. 

5. Technical Standards.  The technical standards used in the operation of the System shall 

comply, at minimum, with the technical standards promulgated by the FCC relating to 

Cable Systems pursuant to Title 47, Section 76, Subpart K of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, as may be amended or modified from time to time, which regulations are 

expressly incorporated herein by reference.   

6. FCC Reports.  The results of any tests required to be filed by Grantee with the FCC shall 

upon request of City also be filed with City or its designee within ten (10) days of the 

date of request. 

7. Annexation.  Upon the annexation of any additional land area by the City, if the annexed 

area is not currently served by a cable operator it will be subject to the other provisions of 

this Section 4.  If the annexed area is served by a cable operator, Grantee has the option 

to extend its Cable System to the newly annexed area if Grantee determines that it is 

economically feasible to do so.  Upon the annexation of any additional land area by the 

City, the annexed area shall be subject to all the terms of this Franchise upon sixty (60) 

days of written notification by the City to Grantee.  A cable operator other than Grantee 

whose Cable System already passes homes in an annexed area shall not extend its Cable 

System beyond those homes which it passes at the time the annexation occurs unless it 

otherwise obtains a franchise from the City. In the event the Grantor modifies the Service 

Area by annexation or any other means, the City shall provide at least sixty (60) days 

prior notice to the Grantee. The City shall also notify Grantee of all new street address 

assignments or changes within the Service Area. Said notice shall be in writing to the 

18



 

 

12 
 

address set forth below by U.S. certified mail, return receipt requested. City shall provide 

detail and information, including address files and maps in sufficient detail and in an 

acceptable digital format, if feasible.  Grantee shall begin to collect Franchise Fees from 

Subscribers in any annexed area within ninety (90) days of such notice and address 

information as described above.  Grantee shall not be obligated to collect and remit 

Franchise Fees until such notice and information has been received by Grantee.  

 All notices provided under this subsection shall be delivered to the Grantee at the 

 following address: 

          

                                Charter Communications   

                                Attn: Government Relations Director 

                     151 London Parkway 

                     Birmingham, AL 35211 

 

 Grantee shall provide Grantor thirty (30) days written notice of address changes affecting 

 this subsection pursuant to section 2, paragraph 7.  

    

8. Service Area.  The Grantee shall continue to provide Cable Service to all residences 

within the Service Area where Grantee currently provides Cable Service. Grantee shall 

have the right, but not the obligation, to extend the Cable System into any other portion 

of the Service Area, including annexed areas.  Cable Service offered to Subscribers 

pursuant to this Franchise shall be conditioned upon Grantee having legal access to any 

such Subscriber’s dwelling unit or other units wherein such Cable Service is provided.  

  SECTION 5. 

SERVICE PROVISIONS 

 

1. Non-Standard Installations.  Grantee shall install and provide Cable Service to any 

Person requesting other than a Standard Installation provided that said Cable Service can 

meet FCC technical specifications and all payment and policy obligations are met.  In 

such case, Grantee may charge for the incremental increase in material and labor costs 

incurred beyond the Standard Installation. 

2. Sales Procedures.  Grantee shall have the right to market door-to-door during reasonable 

hours consistent with local ordinances and regulation.  Grantee’s sales personnel will not 

be required to compensate City for any permit that may be required. 

3. Consumer Protection and Service Standards. The Grantee shall comply with all 

applicable federal regulations relating to customer service obligations, including any 

amendments to 47 C.F.R. § 76.309 during the term of this Franchise, which for the 

parties’ convenience are set forth below as they exist on the Effective Date. 

a. Cable System office hours and telephone availability. 

i. Grantee will maintain a local, toll-free or collect call telephone access line 

which will be available to its Subscribers twenty-four (24) hours a day, 

seven (7) days a week. 

19



 

 

13 
 

(1) Trained Grantee representatives will be available to respond to 

customer telephone inquiries during Normal Business Hours. 

(2) After Normal Business Hours, the access line may be answered by 

a service or an automated response system, including an answering 

machine.  Inquiries received after Normal Business Hours must be 

responded to by a trained Grantee representative on the next 

business day. 

ii. Under Normal Operating Conditions, telephone answer time by a 

customer representative, including wait time, shall not exceed thirty (30) 

seconds when the connection is made.  If the call needs to be transferred, 

transfer time shall not exceed thirty (30) seconds.  These standards shall 

be met no less then ninety percent (90%) of the time under Normal 

Operating Conditions, measured on a quarterly basis. 

iii. Grantee shall not be required to acquire equipment or perform surveys to 

measure compliance with the telephone answering standards above unless 

an historical record of complaints indicates a clear failure to comply. 

iv. Under Normal Operating Conditions, the customer will receive a busy 

signal less than three percent (3%) of the time. 

v. Customer service center and bill payment locations will be open at least 

during Normal Business Hours and will be conveniently located. 

b. Installations, Outages and Service Calls.  Under Normal Operating Conditions, 

each of the following standards will be met no less than ninety-five percent (95%) 

of the time measured on a quarterly basis. 

i. Standard Installations will be performed within seven (7) business days 

after an order has been placed.  “Standard” Installations are those that are 

located up to one hundred twenty-five (125) feet from the connection 

point of the existing distribution system. 

ii. Excluding conditions beyond the control of Grantee, Grantee will begin 

working on “Service Interruptions” promptly and in no event later than 

twenty-four (24) hours after the interruption becomes known. Grantee 

must begin actions to correct other Service problems the next business day 

after notification of the Service problem. 

iii. The “appointment window” alternatives for Installations, Service calls, 

and other Installation activities will be either a specific time or, at 

maximum, a four (4) hour time block during Normal Business Hours.  

(Grantee may schedule Service calls and other Installation activities 

outside of Normal Business Hours for the express convenience of the 

customer.) 

iv. Grantee may not cancel an appointment with a customer after the close of 

business on the business day prior to the scheduled appointment. 

v. If Grantee’s representative is running late for an appointment with a 

customer and will not be able to keep the appointment as scheduled, the 

20



 

 

14 
 

customer will be contacted.  The appointment will be rescheduled, as 

necessary, at a time which is convenient for the customer. 

c. Communications between Grantee and Subscribers. 

i. Notifications to Subscribers: 

(1) Grantee will provide written information on each of the following 

areas at the time of Installation of Service, at least annually to all 

Subscribers, and at any time upon request: 

(a) Products and Services offered; 

(b) Prices and options for programming Services and 

conditions of subscription to programming and other 

Services; 

(c) Installation and Service maintenance policies; 

(d) Instructions on how to use the Cable Service; 

(e) Channel positions of programming carried on the System; 

and 

(f) Billing and complaint procedures, including the address   

and telephone number of the nearest customer service 

center. 

(2) Subscribers will be notified of any changes in rates, programming 

Services or Channel positions as soon as possible in writing.  

Notice must be given to Subscribers a minimum of thirty (30) days 

in advance of such changes if the change is within the control of 

the Grantee.  In addition, the Grantee shall notify Subscribers thirty 

(30) days in advance of any significant changes in the other 

information required by Section 76.1602. 

(3) In addition to the requirement of subparagraph (2) of this section 

regarding advance notification to Subscribers of any changes in 

rates, programming services or Channel positions, Grantee shall 

give thirty (30) days written notice to both Subscribers and the 

City before implementing any rate or Service change.  Such notice 

shall state the precise amount of any rate change and briefly 

explain in readily understandable fashion the cause of the rate 

change (e.g., inflation, change in external costs or the 

addition/deletion of Channels). When the change involves the   

deletion of Channels, each Channel deleted must be separately 

identified.  For purposes of the carriage of digital broadcast 

signals, the Grantee need only identify for Subscribers, the 

television signal location and not whether that signal may be 

multiplexed during certain day parts. 

21



 

 

15 
 

(4) To the extent Grantee is required to provide notice of Service and 

rate changes to Subscribers, the Grantee may provide such notice 

using any reasonable written means at its sole discretion. 

(5) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, Grantee shall 

not be required to provide prior notice of any rate change that is 

the result of a regulatory fee, Franchise Fee, or any other fee, tax, 

assessment, or charge of any kind imposed by any federal agency, 

state, or City on the transaction between the Grantee and the 

Subscriber. 

ii. Billing: 

(1) Consistent with 47 C.F.R. § 76.1619, bills will be clear, concise 

and understandable.  Bills must be fully itemized, with 

itemizations including, but not limited to, Basic Cable Service and 

premium Service charges and equipment charges.  Bills will also 

clearly delineate all activity during the billing period, including 

optional charges, rebates and credits. 

(2) In case of a billing dispute, the Grantee must respond to a written 

complaint from a Subscriber within thirty (30) days. 

iii. Refunds:  Refund checks will be issued promptly, but no later than either: 

(1) The Subscriber’s next billing cycle following resolution of the 

request or thirty (30) days, whichever is earlier, or 

(2) The return of the equipment supplied by Grantee if Service is 

terminated. 

iv. Credits: Credits for Service will be issued no later than the Subscriber's 

next billing cycle following the determination that a credit is warranted. 

4. Subscriber Contracts.  Upon request, Grantee shall file with City any standard form 

residential Subscriber contract utilized by Grantee.  If no such written contract exists, 

upon request, Grantee shall file with the City a document completely and concisely 

stating the length and terms of the Subscriber contract offered to customers.  The length 

and terms of any Subscriber contract(s) shall be available for public inspection during 

Normal Business Hours.  A list of Grantee’s current Subscriber rates and charges for 

Cable Service is maintained in Grantee’s public file, and upon request, shall be available 

for public inspection. A copy of Grantee’s current rate card can be located at 

http://www.charter.com/browse/content/rate-card-info.  A copy of Grantee’s current 

channel line-up for Leeds AL can be located at http://www.charter.com/browse/tv-

service/tv#Channel-Lineup 

5. Refund Policy.  If a Subscriber’s Cable Service is interrupted or discontinued without 

cause, for twenty-four (24) or more consecutive hours, the Grantee shall, upon request by 

Subscriber, credit such Subscriber pro rata for such interruption.  For this purpose, every 

month will be assumed to have thirty (30) days. 

22

http://www.charter.com/browse/content/rate-card-info
http://www.charter.com/browse/tv-service/tv#Channel-Lineup
http://www.charter.com/browse/tv-service/tv#Channel-Lineup


 

 

16 
 

6. Late Fees.  Grantee shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws with respect to 

any assessment, charge, cost, fee or sum, however characterized, that the Grantee 

imposes upon a Subscriber for late payment of a bill.  The City reserves the right to 

enforce Grantee’s compliance with all Applicable Laws to the maximum extent legally 

permissible. 

SECTION 6. 

OPERATION AND ADMINISTRATION PROVISIONS 

 

1. Administration of Franchise.  The Mayor or other designee shall have continuing 

regulatory jurisdiction and supervision over the System and the Grantee’s operation 

under the Franchise; provided, however, that the City Council shall retain the sole 

authority to take enforcement action pursuant to this Franchise.  

2. Franchise Fee. 

a. During the term of the Franchise, Grantee shall pay quarterly to City a Franchise 

Fee in an amount equal to five percent (5%) of its quarterly Gross Revenues,  

b. Any payments due under this provision shall be payable quarterly.  The payment 

shall be made within forty-five (45) days of the end of each of Grantee’s fiscal 

quarters together with a report showing the basis for the computation in form and 

substance substantially the same as Exhibit A attached hereto.  In the event that a 

Franchise Fee payment or other sum due is not received by the City on or before 

the date due, or is underpaid, Grantee shall pay in addition to the payment, or sum 

due, interest from the due date at the state legal interest rate of 6% annually 

(Alabama Code § 8.8.1). 

c. All amounts paid shall be subject to audit and recomputation by City and 

acceptance of any payment shall not be construed as an accord that the amount 

paid is in fact the correct amount.  In the event the City should conduct a review 

of Grantee’s books and records pursuant to Section 6.6 of this Franchise and such 

review indicates a Franchise Fee underpayment of seven percent (7%) or more 

during the entire period reviewed, the Grantee shall, subject to Applicable Law, 

assume all reasonable documented costs of such audit, and pay same upon 

demand by the City. 

3. Discounted Rates.  For the purposes of this section, in the case of a Cable Service that 

may be bundled or integrated functionally with other services, capabilities, or 

applications, the Franchise Fee shall be applied only to the gross revenue, as defined in 

Section 1.2.n., attributable to Cable Service. Where Grantee bundles, integrates, ties, or 

combines Cable Services with non-video services creating a bundled package, so that 

subscribers pay a single fee for more than one class of service or receive a discount on 

Cable Services, gross revenues shall be determined based on an equal allocation of the 

package discount, that is, the total price of the individual classes of service at advertised 

rates compared to the package price, among all classes of service comprising the 

package. The fact that the Grantee offers a bundled package shall not be deemed a 

23



 

 

17 
 

promotional activity. If the Grantee does not offer any component of the bundled package 

separately, the Grantee shall declare a stated retail value for each component based on 

reasonable comparable prices for the product or service for the purpose of determining 

Franchise Fees based on the package discount described above.  For the purposes of 

determining gross revenue for bundled or integrated services, Grantee shall use the same 

method of determining revenues under generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

4. Access to Records.  The City shall have the right to inspect, upon reasonable notice and 

during Normal Business Hours, or require Grantee to provide within a reasonable time 

copies of any records maintained by Grantee which relate to System operations including 

specifically Grantee’s accounting and financial records. The Grantee shall not be required 

to maintain any books and records for Franchise compliance purposes longer than 

required by applicable state statute of limitations, as may be amended form time to time, 

except for service complaints which shall be kept for one (1) year. City acknowledges 

that some of the records which may be provided by Grantee may be classified as 

confidential and therefore may subject Grantee to competitive disadvantage if made 

public. City shall therefore maintain the confidentiality of any and all records provided to 

it by Grantee which are not required to be made public pursuant to Applicable Laws. 

Grantee shall produce such books and records for City’s inspection at any mutually 

agreed upon location within the City.    

5. Reports to be Filed with City. 

a. Grantee shall file with the City, at the time of payment of the Franchise Fee, a 

 report of all Gross Revenues in form and substance as Exhibit A attached hereto. 

b. City and Grantee shall mutually agree, at the times and in the form prescribed, 

 such other reasonable reports with respect to Grantee’s operations pursuant to this 

 Franchise. 

c. Upon reasonable notice by City, Grantee shall deliver its System maps and plats 

to City’s office located at 1400 9th St NE, Leeds, AL 35094 or at a mutually 

agreed upon location, for viewing, however, for confidential and proprietary 

reasons, Grantee shall not be required to provide copies of its maps and plats to 

City. 

SECTION 7. 

GENERAL FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

 

1. Liability Insurance.  

a. Grantee shall obtain with its acceptance of this Franchise, and at all times 

thereafter maintain in full force and effect at its sole expense, an occurrence-based 

comprehensive general liability insurance policy, including contractual liability 

coverage with standard insurance exclusions, in protection of City, its officers, 

elected officials, boards, commissions, agents and employees.  The policy or 

policies shall name as additional insured the City, its officers, elected officials, 

24



 

 

18 
 

boards, commissions, agents and employees.  The Commercial General Liability 

shall be $2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, death or property damage 

and $3,000,000 aggregate. The policy or policies of insurance shall be maintained 

by Grantee in full force and effect during the entire term of the Franchise and 

shall be issued by company licensed to do business in the State of Alabama with a 

rating by A.M. Best & Co. of not less than “A” upon the Effective Date of this 

Franchise or at the time a sale or transfer of ownership is approved by City. 

Grantee shall furnish City with current certificates of insurance evidencing such 

coverage upon request.  Cancellation notice will be provided for any reason other 

than non-payment of premium and requires the City provide Grantee a valid 

contact name and e-mail address (with any changes to the contact name or e-mail 

address being the responsibility of the City).   

2. Indemnification   

a. Grantee shall indemnify, defend and hold City, its officers, boards, commissions, 

agents and employees (collectively the “Indemnified Parties”) harmless from and 

against any and all lawsuits, claims, causes or action, actions, liabilities, demands, 

damages, judgments, settlements, disability, losses, expenses (including attorney’s 

fees and disbursements of counsel) and costs of any nature that any of the 

Indemnified Parties may at any time suffer, sustain or incur arising out of, based 

upon or in any way connected with the Grantee’s negligent operations, the 

exercise of the Franchise, the breach of Grantee of its obligations under this 

Franchise and/or the negligent activities of Grantee, it subcontractors, employees 

and agents hereunder.  Grantee shall be solely responsible for and shall 

indemnify, defend and hold the Indemnified Parties harmless from and against 

any and all matters relative to payment of Grantee’s employees, including 

compliance with Social Security and withholdings. Grantee shall not be required 

to indemnify City for negligence or misconduct on the part of City or its officials, 

boards, commissions, agents, or employees. 

b. The indemnification obligations of Grantee set forth in this Franchise are not 

limited in any way by the amount or type of damages or compensation payable by 

or for Grantee under Workers’ Compensation, disability or other employee 

benefit acts, acceptance of insurance certificates required under this Franchise or 

the terms, applicability or limitations of any insurance held by Grantee. 

c. City does not, and shall not, waive any rights against Grantee which it may have 

by reason of the indemnification provided for in this Franchise, because of the 

acceptance by City, or the deposit with City by Grantee, of any of the certificates 

of insurance described in this Franchise. 

d. The indemnification of City by Grantee provided for in this Franchise shall apply 

regardless of whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to 

be applicable to any such damages or claims for damages. 

25



 

 

19 
 

e. In order for City to assert its rights to be indemnified, defended, and held 

harmless, City must, with respect to each claim: 

i. Promptly notify Grantee within ten (10) business days in writing of any 

claim or legal proceeding which gives rise to such right; 

ii. Afford Grantee the opportunity to participate in and fully control any 

compromise, settlement or other resolution or disposition of any claim or 

proceeding; and 

iii. Fully cooperate with reasonable requests of Grantee, at Grantee's expense, 

in its participation in, and control, compromise, settlement or resolution or 

other disposition of such claim or proceeding subject to subparagraph (ii) 

above. 

SECTION 8. 

SALE, ABANDONMENT, TRANSFER AND REVOCATION OF FRANCHISE 

 

1. City’s Right to Revoke. 

In addition to all other rights which City has pursuant to law or equity, City reserves the 

right to commence proceedings to revoke, terminate or cancel this Franchise, and all 

rights and privileges pertaining thereto, if it is determined by City that after notice and an 

opportunity to cure as reordered herein; 

i. Grantee has repeatedly and substantially violated material provisions(s) of 

this Franchise and has not put forth a reasonable proposal to cure such 

violations; or 

ii. Grantee has intentionally and materially evaded any of the provisions of 

the Franchise; or 

iii. Grantee has practiced a material fraud or a material deceit upon City. 

2. Procedures for Revocation. 

a. City shall provide Grantee with written notice of a cause for revocation and the 

intent to revoke and shall allow Grantee thirty (30) days subsequent to receipt of 

the notice in which to correct the violation or to provide adequate assurance of 

performance in compliance with the Franchise. In the notice required therein, City 

shall provide Grantee with the basis of the revocation. 

b. Should City determine to proceed with a revocation proceeding, Grantee shall be 

provided the right to a public hearing affording due process before the City 

Council prior to the effective date of revocation.  The due process to be afforded 

Grantee shall include the Grantee’s right to present any written or verbal 

testimony or other relevant evidence to the City Council for consideration.  Such 

information presented by Grantee shall be considered part of the record of the 

26



 

 

20 
 

proceeding. City shall provide Grantee with written notice of its decision together 

with written findings of fact supplementing said decision. 

c. Only after the public hearing and upon written notice of the determination by City 

to revoke the Franchise may Grantee appeal said decision with an appropriate 

state or federal court or agency.  Nothing in this Franchise, including the 

enforcement provisions set forth in this Section 8, shall prevent Grantee from 

filing at any time a legal action in any permissible court or tribunal seeking a 

declaration or enforcement of Grantee’s rights or obligations under the Franchise. 

d. During the appeal period or pendency of any legal action, the Franchise shall 

remain in full force and effect unless the term thereof sooner expires and Grantee 

is not pursuing renewal under Applicable Law or unless continuation of the 

Franchise would endanger the health, safety and welfare of any Person or the 

public. 

3. Removal After Abandonment, Termination or Forfeiture. In the event of termination or 

forfeiture of the Franchise or abandonment of the System, City shall have the right to 

require Grantee to remove all or any portion of the System from all Rights-of-Way and 

public property within City. 

4.  Franchise Transfer.  The Franchise granted hereunder shall not be assigned, other than to 

an entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with the Grantee, without 

the prior written consent of the Grantor, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or 

delayed. No such consent shall be required, however, for a transfer in trust, by mortgage, 

by other hypothecation, or by assignment of any rights, title, or interest of the Grantee in 

the Franchise or Cable System to secure indebtedness.  Within thirty (30) days of 

receiving a request for transfer, the Grantor shall notify the Grantee in writing of any 

additional information it reasonably requires to determine the legal, financial and 

technical qualifications of the transferee.  If the Grantor has not taken action on the 

Grantee’s request for transfer within one hundred twenty (120) days after receiving such 

request, consent by the Grantor shall be deemed given. 

SECTION 9. 

PROTECTION OF INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS 

 

1. Discriminatory Practices Prohibited.  Grantee shall not deny Service, deny access, or 

otherwise discriminate against Subscribers or general citizens on the basis of race, color, 

religion, national origin, sex, age, status as to public assistance, affectional preference, or 

disability.  Grantee shall comply at all times with all other Applicable Laws, and all 

executive and administrative orders relating to nondiscrimination. 

2. Subscriber Privacy.  Grantee shall at all times comply with all applicable provisions of 47 

U.S.C. 551 governing subscriber privacy.  Grantor reserves any and all rights it may have 

now or in the future to enforce compliance with all applicable state and federal laws and 

regulations governing subscriber privacy.  

27



 

 

21 
 

SECTION 10. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

1. Franchise Renewal.  Any renewal of this Franchise shall be performed in accordance with 

Applicable Laws.    

2. Work Performed by Others.  All applicable obligations of this Franchise shall apply to 

any subcontractor or others performing any work or services pursuant to the provisions of 

this Franchise. Grantee shall provide notice to City of the name(s) and address(es) of any 

entity, other than Grantee, which performs substantial services pursuant to this Franchise. 

3. Amendment of Franchise Ordinance.  Grantee and City may agree, from time to time, to 

amend this Franchise.  Such written amendments may be made at any time if City and 

Grantee agree that such an amendment will be in the public interest or if such an 

amendment is required due to changes in federal, state or local laws. 

4. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. 

a. If any federal or state law or regulation shall require or permit City or Grantee to 

perform any service or act or shall prohibit City or Grantee from performing any 

service or act which may be in conflict with the terms of this Franchise, then as 

soon as possible following knowledge thereof, either party shall notify the other 

of the point in conflict believed to exist between such law or regulation.   

b. If any term, condition or provision of this Franchise or the application thereof to 

 any Person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be held to be invalid or 

 unenforceable, the remainder hereof and the application of such term, condition or 

 provision to Persons or circumstances other than those as to whom it shall be held 

 invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby, and this Franchise and all 

 the terms, provisions and conditions hereof shall, in all other respects, continue to 

 be effective and complied with provided the loss of the invalid or unenforceable 

 clause does not substantially alter the agreement between the parties.  In the event 

 such law, rule or regulation is subsequently repealed, rescinded, amended or 

 otherwise changed so that the provision which had been held invalid or modified 

 is no longer in conflict with the law, rules and regulations then in effect, said 

 provision shall thereupon return to full force and effect and shall thereafter be 

 binding on Grantee and City. 

5. Non-enforcement by City.  Grantee shall not be relieved of its obligations to comply with 

any of the provisions of this Franchise by reason of any failure or delay of City to enforce 

prompt compliance.  City may only waive its rights hereunder by expressly so stating in 

writing.  Any such written waiver by City of a breach or violation of any provision of this 

Franchise shall not operate as or be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach or 

violation. 

6. Rights Cumulative.   The rights and remedies reserved to the City and Grantee by this 

Franchise are cumulative and shall be in addition to and not in derogation of any other 

28



 

 

22 
 

legal or equitable rights or remedies which the City and Grantee may have with respect to 

the subject matter of this Franchise, and a waiver thereof at any time shall have no effect 

on the enforcement of such rights or remedies at a future time. 

7. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be in default under this Agreement if any failure or 

delay in performance is caused by acts of God; fire; flood; earthquake; lightning; 

unusually severe weather; material or facility shortages or unavailability not resulting 

from such party's failure to timely place orders therefore; war or civil disorder; or any 

other cause beyond the reasonable control of either party hereto.  The excused party shall 

use reasonable efforts under the circumstances to avoid or remove such causes of non-

performance and shall proceed to perform with reasonable dispatch whenever such 

causes are removed or ceased. Notification shall be given by the excused party to the 

other party, of the cause and of the estimated duration, when possible. 

          

           SECTION 11. 

PUBLICATION EFFECTIVE DATE; ACCEPTANCE AND EXHIBITS 

 

1. Publication, Effective Date.  This Franchise shall be published in accordance with 

applicable local and state law.  The effective date of this Franchise shall be the date of 

acceptance by Grantee in accordance with the provisions of Section 11.2. 

2. Acceptance. 

 

a. Grantee shall accept this Franchise within thirty (30) days of its enactment by the 

City Council, unless the time for acceptance is extended by City.  Such 

acceptance by the Grantee shall be deemed the grant of this Franchise for all 

purposes. 

b. Upon acceptance of this Franchise, Grantee and City shall be bound by all the 

terms and conditions contained herein. 

c. Grantee shall accept this Franchise in the following manner: 

i. This Franchise will be properly executed and acknowledged by Grantee 

and delivered to City. 

ii. With its acceptance, Grantee shall also deliver any insurance certificates 

as required herein that have not previously been delivered. 

 

Passed and adopted by the City Council this_____ day of ____________, 2020. 

ATTEST:  LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

By:  By:        

                                                                                      

Its:            Its:       

 

29



 

 

23 
 

ACCEPTED:  This Franchise is accepted, and we agree to be bound by its terms and conditions. 

 

       

       SPECTRUM SOUTHEAST, LLC 

  

 

Date:   ,   2020   By: Charter Communications, Inc., Its Manager 

 

     By:         

                                                                                

  Print Name:   

  

 Its:       Vice President, Government Affairs   

 

SWORN TO BEFORE ME this 

__ day of ___________, 2020. 

  

NOTARY PUBLIC 

 

30



 

B-1 

EXHIBIT A 

FRANCHISE FEE PAYMENT WORKSHEET 

 

TRADE SECRET – CONFIDENTIAL 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



 

 

 B-2 

EXHIBIT B 

GRANTEE COMPLIMENTARY LOCATIONS TO CITY LOCATIONS 

 

One (1) complimentary outlet of Basic Service will be provided, on a voluntary basis, to each of 

the locations listed below. If any of the locations below require an installation, Grantee will 

install Basic Service at the lowest actual cost of Grantee’s time and material. Each location listed 

below may add additional outlets at their own expense, as long as installation meets Grantee’s 

standards and approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

 

City Hall 1400 9th St., Leeds, AL 35094 

Development Services 1404 9th St. Leeds, AL 35094 

Municipal Annex 1410 9th St. Leeds, AL 35094 

City Hall Annex 1412 9th St. Leeds, AL 35094 

Police Department 1040 Park Drive, Leeds, AL 35094 

  

  

  

 

 

32



File Attachments for Item:

2. B20-000001: Request for an Alcoholic Beverage License to Virginia Abu Al Maati, /dba/ 

Mountainview Package Store at 8525 Whitfield Avenue; Suite 101

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



File Attachments for Item:

3. B20-000003: Request for an Alcoholic Beverage License to Buc-ee's Alabama II, LLC, trade 

name Buc-ee's #43 at 6900 Buc-ee's Boulevard

125



September 2020 Form LCD-1 Page 1 

ABC Licensing & Compliance Division 
Pre-Application 

This Pre-Application packet must be completed in full prior to scheduling an appointment. 
In this packet is a list of documents that are REQUIRED to obtain an ABC Alcohol or Tobacco and/or Alternative Nicotine Product/Electronic 

Nicotine Delivery System License.  Once you gather ALL documents listed on the checklist and complete this Pre-Application entirely, you will need 
to scan and email the packet to your local ABC Licensing and Compliance Division office for review.  Once it is reviewed, you will be notified of any 
corrections that need to be made.  If no corrections are necessary, an appointment will be scheduled with you to create your official ABC License 

Application.  The local ABC Division office works with applicants BY APPOINTMENT ONLY.  It is imperative that you arrive to your scheduled 
appointment on time.  

Please use the attached checklist (Form LCD-2) to assist you in gathering the necessary documents for your application.  If you have any questions, 
please contact your local ABC Division office.  

1. Applicant Name: ___________________________________________________________________________________
(Individual or legal entity responsible for this license; (i.e. sole proprietor, Corporation, Association, LLC, Partnership, LLP) 

2. Doing Business As/Trade Name: _______________________________________________________________________

3. Location Address: __________________________________    _________________    __________________   ________
     Street Address (Include Suite/Unit/Building Number)      City                   County      Zip Code 

4. Type of Business: Convenience Store  Grocery __ Package Store  Restaurant __ Lounge/Private Club  Hotel/Mote
Tobacco Store  Department Store  Other: ______________________________________________________________

5. If not a sole proprietor or partnership, is the applying entity a publicly traded company  or a 501(c) organization  ?

6. Governing Jurisdiction: _____________________________________      _________________________________________
     (Where business is physically located – City or County Limits)        If business is located in the County, approx. distance from city limit: 

7. Police Jurisdiction: _____________________________________________________________________________________
   (Where business is physically located – City or County Limits)  

8. Type of Ownership: ____________________________________________________________________________________
(Individual, Partnership, LLP, LLC, Corporation, Association)   

9. State Incorporated: ___________________________  11. Date Incorporated: ________________________________

12. County Incorporated: __________________________ 13. Date of Authority to do Business in AL: __________________

14. Book, Page, Document Number: _________________ 15. Alabama State Sales Tax ID number: ____________________

16. Federal Tax ID number: _________________________

17. Mailing Address: __________________________________    _________________    __________________   ________
Street Address (Include Suite/Unit/Building Number)                         City                                                 County                             Zip Code 

 Check here if same as location address listed in 3.) above

18. Business Web Address (if applicable) : _____________________________________________________________________

Contact Information: The contact listed below should be the individual the local ABC Division office will contact regarding this application for 
any corrections and/or questions that arise throughout the application process, as well as for any future communication with the licensed 
business. Please Note:  It is extremely important to notify the ABC Board of any changes to the licensee’s contact information for renewal 
purposes 
19. Contact Name: __________________________________ Contact Relationship to Applicant: _____________________________

     (i e. Owner, Power of Attorney, etc.) 

Contact Home Number: ___________________________ Contact Cell Phone: _ ________________ 
Contact Business Number: _________________________ Contact Fax Number: __________________ 
Contact Email Address: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Buc-ee's Alabama II, LLC

Buc-ee's #43

6900 Buc-ee's Blvd. Leeds Jefferson 35094

✔

Leeds

Leeds Police Dept.

LLC

Delaware 6/29/2018

7/13/2018

523-839 R010808338

83-1397413

327 FM 2004 Lake Jackson Brazoria, TX 77566

www.buc-ees.com

Kelly Botkin Power of Attorney

(979) 236-3669
(979) 230-2069

126



127



128



129



130



File Attachments for Item:

4. R20-002476 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7310 PARKWAY DR

131



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82548052&ciDisplay=null 1/5

PUBLIC 

NUSIANCE

7310 PARKWAY DR

2500202001042000

132



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82548052&ciDisplay=null 2/5

CITY OF LEEDS
RESOLUTION 20-002476

RESOLUTION IN DETERMINATION OF CERTIAN CONDITIONS TO BE AN ANNOYANCE AND PUBLIC NUISANCE IN
VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 32 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FOR THE CITY OF LEEDS, AL.

WHEREAS, in accordance with, without limitation, Code of Ordinances for the city of Leeds, Alabama Chapter 32, §11-47-
117, and 11-67-60 to 11-67-67 Code of Alabama 1975 (cumulatively referred to as the "Law"), the City Council of the City
of Leeds has the authority to determined that certain conditions upon certain properties in the city of Leeds are offensive,
produce an annoyance, constitute a threat to the general public health, safety and welfare of the City of Leeds, Alabama
and are in fact a public nuisance; and
WHEREAS, employees or agents of the City of Leeds have identified certain conditions to be a nuisance in violation of the
law as existing on certain property at 7310 PARKWAY DR LEEDS, AL 35094, Parcel ID: 2500202001042000 which is
identified in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Property"); and
WHEREAS, in accordance wit the Law, the City Council of the City of Leeds, after considering the report and the
associated notices as presented by staff, may find that the subject conditions identified by the supporting information and
documentation related to the subject Property(ies) are a public nuisance and order the immediate abatement of such
conditions; and
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leeds may hold a public hearing if requested by the property owner to have the
opportunity of being heard and to discuses the conditions as presented; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City of Leeds is to keep an account of the cost of abating or removing the
nuisance on any such property when the owner fails to comply with the provided notices; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City Council of the City of Leed desires to make a determination as to
whether or not a public nuisance actually exists at the subject Property(ies), based on the information as presented, and
potentially order the abatement of any such nuisance(s).
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds follows:

1. All of the Recitals above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein as if fully set forth
2. The conditions identified by the Notice(s) of the Public Nuisance, in relation to the Property(ies) identified on the

report as Attached hereto as Exhibit A including the requisite notices and supporting information as provided to the
Property owner and posted at the Property, and all hereby declared to be a public nuisance in the City of Leeds.

3. The identified public nuisance(s) is relation to the subject Property(ies) shall be abated and/or removed by the City,
if necessary, with costs assessed to the subject Property.

4. City staff is to create a report of the related costs for abating or removing any remaining nuisance(s) from the
Property and to provide such report back to the City Council for approval of the costs related to the same.

5. The provisions of the Resolution are severable. If any part of the Resolution is determined to be invalid,
unenforceable or unconstitutional, such determination shall not affect any other part of this Resolution.

6. The City Budget is amended to fund the deceleration of public Nuisance abatements.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12/14/2020
CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA
___________________________________ ______________________
DAVID MILLER, MAYOR               DATE

ATTEST:
 

AYES _______
NAYS _______

ABSENT FROM
VOTING _______

___________________________________ ABSTAIN _______
Toushi Arbitelle,
CITY CLERK

I, Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk of the City of Leeds, hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted by the City
Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on 12/14/2020

___________________________________
Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk

133



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82548052&ciDisplay=null 3/5

Document: 

Date Taken:11/13/2020 Taken by:Brad Watson
Address:7310 PARKWAY DR Case Number:20-002476
Violation Code: Sec 32-76-c
Short Description: Inoperable/Unlicensed Vehicle

Full Description: 

It shall be unlawful for any person to park, leave or
store upon any lot, place, property, or premises situated
within the city an inoperable or unlicensed motor
vehicles, recreational vehicles or boats for more than
30 days. Provided that this subsection shall not apply
to a properly zoned and licensed business if such
parking, leaving or storing of such motor vehicles is a
reasonably necessary incident in the operation of said
business Inoperable motor vehicle means any motor
vehicle which is in such a state of disrepair that it is
not capable of being moved safely from one location
to another under its own power or which does not meet
the requirements for operation upon a public street.

Corrective Action: 

134



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82548052&ciDisplay=null 4/5

Document: 

Date Taken:11/13/2020 Taken by:Brad Watson
Address:7310 PARKWAY DR Case Number:20-002476
Violation Code: Sec 32-76-c
Short Description: Inoperable/Unlicensed Vehicle

Full Description: 

It shall be unlawful for any person to park, leave or
store upon any lot, place, property, or premises situated
within the city an inoperable or unlicensed motor
vehicles, recreational vehicles or boats for more than
30 days. Provided that this subsection shall not apply
to a properly zoned and licensed business if such
parking, leaving or storing of such motor vehicles is a
reasonably necessary incident in the operation of said
business Inoperable motor vehicle means any motor
vehicle which is in such a state of disrepair that it is
not capable of being moved safely from one location
to another under its own power or which does not meet
the requirements for operation upon a public street.

Corrective Action: 

135



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82548052&ciDisplay=null 5/5

Document: 

Date Taken:11/13/2020 Taken by:Brad Watson
Address:7310 PARKWAY DR Case Number:20-002476
Violation Code: Sec 32-76-c
Short Description: Inoperable/Unlicensed Vehicle

Full Description: 

It shall be unlawful for any person to park, leave or
store upon any lot, place, property, or premises situated
within the city an inoperable or unlicensed motor
vehicles, recreational vehicles or boats for more than
30 days. Provided that this subsection shall not apply
to a properly zoned and licensed business if such
parking, leaving or storing of such motor vehicles is a
reasonably necessary incident in the operation of said
business Inoperable motor vehicle means any motor
vehicle which is in such a state of disrepair that it is
not capable of being moved safely from one location
to another under its own power or which does not meet
the requirements for operation upon a public street.

Corrective Action: 

136



File Attachments for Item:

5. R20-002372 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7114 TRAMWAY CRT

137



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82520461&ciDisplay=null 1/8

PUBLIC 

NUSIANCE

7114 TRAMWAY CT

2500202003018000

138



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82520461&ciDisplay=null 2/8

CITY OF LEEDS
RESOLUTION 20-002372

RESOLUTION IN DETERMINATION OF CERTIAN CONDITIONS TO BE AN ANNOYANCE AND PUBLIC NUISANCE IN
VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 32 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FOR THE CITY OF LEEDS, AL.

WHEREAS, in accordance with, without limitation, Code of Ordinances for the city of Leeds, Alabama Chapter 32, §11-47-
117, and 11-67-60 to 11-67-67 Code of Alabama 1975 (cumulatively referred to as the "Law"), the City Council of the City
of Leeds has the authority to determined that certain conditions upon certain properties in the city of Leeds are offensive,
produce an annoyance, constitute a threat to the general public health, safety and welfare of the City of Leeds, Alabama
and are in fact a public nuisance; and
WHEREAS, employees or agents of the City of Leeds have identified certain conditions to be a nuisance in violation of the
law as existing on certain property at 7114 TRAMWAY CT LEEDS, AL 35094, Parcel ID: 2500202003018000 which is
identified in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Property"); and
WHEREAS, in accordance wit the Law, the City Council of the City of Leeds, after considering the report and the
associated notices as presented by staff, may find that the subject conditions identified by the supporting information and
documentation related to the subject Property(ies) are a public nuisance and order the immediate abatement of such
conditions; and
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leeds may hold a public hearing if requested by the property owner to have the
opportunity of being heard and to discuses the conditions as presented; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City of Leeds is to keep an account of the cost of abating or removing the
nuisance on any such property when the owner fails to comply with the provided notices; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City Council of the City of Leed desires to make a determination as to
whether or not a public nuisance actually exists at the subject Property(ies), based on the information as presented, and
potentially order the abatement of any such nuisance(s).
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds follows:

1. All of the Recitals above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein as if fully set forth
2. The conditions identified by the Notice(s) of the Public Nuisance, in relation to the Property(ies) identified on the

report as Attached hereto as Exhibit A including the requisite notices and supporting information as provided to the
Property owner and posted at the Property, and all hereby declared to be a public nuisance in the City of Leeds.

3. The identified public nuisance(s) is relation to the subject Property(ies) shall be abated and/or removed by the City,
if necessary, with costs assessed to the subject Property.

4. City staff is to create a report of the related costs for abating or removing any remaining nuisance(s) from the
Property and to provide such report back to the City Council for approval of the costs related to the same.

5. The provisions of the Resolution are severable. If any part of the Resolution is determined to be invalid,
unenforceable or unconstitutional, such determination shall not affect any other part of this Resolution.

6. The City Budget is amended to fund the deceleration of public Nuisance abatements.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12/14/2020
CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA
___________________________________ ______________________
DAVID MILLER, MAYOR               DATE

ATTEST:
 

AYES _______
NAYS _______

ABSENT FROM
VOTING _______

___________________________________ ABSTAIN _______
Toushi Arbitelle,
CITY CLERK

I, Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk of the City of Leeds, hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted by the City
Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on 12/14/2020

___________________________________
Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk

139



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82520461&ciDisplay=null 3/8

Document: Inoperable Vehicles 1

Date Taken:12/01/2020 Taken by:Glenn Williams
Address:7114 TRAMWAY CT Case Number:20-002372
Violation Code: Sec 32-76-c
Short Description: Inoperable/Unlicensed Vehicle

Full Description: 

It shall be unlawful for any person to park, leave or
store upon any lot, place, property, or premises situated
within the city an inoperable or unlicensed motor
vehicles, recreational vehicles or boats for more than
30 days. Provided that this subsection shall not apply
to a properly zoned and licensed business if such
parking, leaving or storing of such motor vehicles is a
reasonably necessary incident in the operation of said
business Inoperable motor vehicle means any motor
vehicle which is in such a state of disrepair that it is
not capable of being moved safely from one location
to another under its own power or which does not meet
the requirements for operation upon a public street.

Corrective Action: 

140



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82520461&ciDisplay=null 4/8

Document: Inoperable Vehicles 2

Date Taken:12/01/2020 Taken by:Glenn Williams
Address:7114 TRAMWAY CT Case Number:20-002372
Violation Code: Sec 32-76-c
Short Description: Inoperable/Unlicensed Vehicle

Full Description: 

It shall be unlawful for any person to park, leave or
store upon any lot, place, property, or premises situated
within the city an inoperable or unlicensed motor
vehicles, recreational vehicles or boats for more than
30 days. Provided that this subsection shall not apply
to a properly zoned and licensed business if such
parking, leaving or storing of such motor vehicles is a
reasonably necessary incident in the operation of said
business Inoperable motor vehicle means any motor
vehicle which is in such a state of disrepair that it is
not capable of being moved safely from one location
to another under its own power or which does not meet
the requirements for operation upon a public street.

Corrective Action: 

141



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82520461&ciDisplay=null 5/8

Document: Notice and Order to Abate

Date Taken:12/01/2020 Taken by:Glenn Williams
Address:7114 TRAMWAY CT Case Number:20-002372
Violation Code: Sec 32-76-c
Short Description: Inoperable/Unlicensed Vehicle

Full Description: 

It shall be unlawful for any person to park, leave or
store upon any lot, place, property, or premises situated
within the city an inoperable or unlicensed motor
vehicles, recreational vehicles or boats for more than
30 days. Provided that this subsection shall not apply
to a properly zoned and licensed business if such
parking, leaving or storing of such motor vehicles is a
reasonably necessary incident in the operation of said
business Inoperable motor vehicle means any motor
vehicle which is in such a state of disrepair that it is
not capable of being moved safely from one location
to another under its own power or which does not meet
the requirements for operation upon a public street.

Corrective Action: 

142



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82520461&ciDisplay=null 6/8

Document: Photo of car

Date Taken:10/22/2020 Taken by:Brad Watson
Address:7114 TRAMWAY CT Case Number:20-002372
Violation Code: Sec 32-76-c
Short Description: Inoperable/Unlicensed Vehicle

Full Description: 

It shall be unlawful for any person to park, leave or
store upon any lot, place, property, or premises situated
within the city an inoperable or unlicensed motor
vehicles, recreational vehicles or boats for more than
30 days. Provided that this subsection shall not apply
to a properly zoned and licensed business if such
parking, leaving or storing of such motor vehicles is a
reasonably necessary incident in the operation of said
business Inoperable motor vehicle means any motor
vehicle which is in such a state of disrepair that it is
not capable of being moved safely from one location
to another under its own power or which does not meet
the requirements for operation upon a public street.

Corrective Action: 

143



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82520461&ciDisplay=null 7/8

City of Leeds, Alabama
Department of Development Services

1404 9th St. Leeds, AL 35094
205-699-2585 development@leedsalabama.gov

CURTIS NATASHA
7114 TRAMWAY CT 
LEEDS, AL 35094-7815

Reference: 20-002372
Parcel ID: 2500202003018000

NOTICE AND ORDER TO ABATE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT CURTIS NATASHA is in violation of Chapter 32 of the City of Leeds, Municipal Code.
The violation has been investigated, declared a public nuisance by the City Enforcement Officer and must
be abated immediately.
The public nuisance is on property located at: 7114 TRAMWAY CT LEEDS, AL 35094
YOU ARE HEREBY ORDERED TO ABATE SAID PUBLIC NUISANCE within ten (10) days consecutive calendar days
from the issuance of this Order. The issuance date is specified below. You may abate the nuisance by
REMOVE ITEMS IN VIOLATION OF ORD. 2016-02-04

Section: Sec 32-76-c
Description: Inoperable/Unlicensed Vehicle
Corrective Action: Remove Offending Vehicles 10 Days
Comments: 

If you fail to abate the public nuisance within ten (10) days, the City may order its abatement by public employees, private
contractor, or other means, and the cost of said abatement may be levied and assessed against the property as a special
assessment lien or billed directly to the property owner.
This Matter will be heard at a hearing before the City Council on 11/16/2020 at the Leeds City Hall Annex located at 1412
9th St., Leeds, Alabama. The decision of the City Council on this Matter will be final and conclusive.
YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO BE HEARD at the hearing identified above. You have the right to:
1. Be present at the hearing and to present your evidence against this Order in writing prior to the hearing;
2. Provide your written statement against the Order and to specify the reasons not to enforce the Order, containing your
name, address and telephone number,
3. Submit your written statement & request to be heard to the following address within at least 24 hours prior to the subject
hearing: 1404 9th St, Leeds, Alabama. (205) 699-2585
In the event that the hearing results in confirmation of a public nuisance, the City will take the necessary steps to abate the
nuisance and assess all costs against the subject property. The City also reserves the right to forward the matter to the
Municipal Court for further enforcement actions pursuant to Chapter 32 of the City Code.
If you have any questions regarding this matter, you may direct them to the City Enforcement Officer issuing this Notice at
the address or telephone number listed above.

Signed:______________________
               Enforcement Officer ISSUANCE DATE: October 22, 2020

 

144



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82520461&ciDisplay=null 8/8

Document: Photo of car

Date Taken:10/22/2020 Taken by:Brad Watson
Address:7114 TRAMWAY CT Case Number:20-002372
Violation Code: Sec 32-76-c
Short Description: Inoperable/Unlicensed Vehicle

Full Description: 

It shall be unlawful for any person to park, leave or
store upon any lot, place, property, or premises situated
within the city an inoperable or unlicensed motor
vehicles, recreational vehicles or boats for more than
30 days. Provided that this subsection shall not apply
to a properly zoned and licensed business if such
parking, leaving or storing of such motor vehicles is a
reasonably necessary incident in the operation of said
business Inoperable motor vehicle means any motor
vehicle which is in such a state of disrepair that it is
not capable of being moved safely from one location
to another under its own power or which does not meet
the requirements for operation upon a public street.

Corrective Action: 

145



File Attachments for Item:

6. R20-002225 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 1332 BEECH ST

146



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82491374&ciDisplay=null 1/6

PUBLIC 

NUSIANCE

1332 BEECH ST

2500224000005000

147



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82491374&ciDisplay=null 2/6

CITY OF LEEDS
RESOLUTION 20-002225

RESOLUTION IN DETERMINATION OF CERTIAN CONDITIONS TO BE AN ANNOYANCE AND PUBLIC NUISANCE IN
VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 32 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FOR THE CITY OF LEEDS, AL.

WHEREAS, in accordance with, without limitation, Code of Ordinances for the city of Leeds, Alabama Chapter 32, §11-47-
117, and 11-67-60 to 11-67-67 Code of Alabama 1975 (cumulatively referred to as the "Law"), the City Council of the City
of Leeds has the authority to determined that certain conditions upon certain properties in the city of Leeds are offensive,
produce an annoyance, constitute a threat to the general public health, safety and welfare of the City of Leeds, Alabama
and are in fact a public nuisance; and
WHEREAS, employees or agents of the City of Leeds have identified certain conditions to be a nuisance in violation of the
law as existing on certain property at 1332 BEECH ST LEEDS, AL 35094, Parcel ID: 2500224000005000 which is
identified in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Property"); and
WHEREAS, in accordance wit the Law, the City Council of the City of Leeds, after considering the report and the
associated notices as presented by staff, may find that the subject conditions identified by the supporting information and
documentation related to the subject Property(ies) are a public nuisance and order the immediate abatement of such
conditions; and
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leeds may hold a public hearing if requested by the property owner to have the
opportunity of being heard and to discuses the conditions as presented; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City of Leeds is to keep an account of the cost of abating or removing the
nuisance on any such property when the owner fails to comply with the provided notices; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City Council of the City of Leed desires to make a determination as to
whether or not a public nuisance actually exists at the subject Property(ies), based on the information as presented, and
potentially order the abatement of any such nuisance(s).
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds follows:

1. All of the Recitals above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein as if fully set forth
2. The conditions identified by the Notice(s) of the Public Nuisance, in relation to the Property(ies) identified on the

report as Attached hereto as Exhibit A including the requisite notices and supporting information as provided to the
Property owner and posted at the Property, and all hereby declared to be a public nuisance in the City of Leeds.

3. The identified public nuisance(s) is relation to the subject Property(ies) shall be abated and/or removed by the City,
if necessary, with costs assessed to the subject Property.

4. City staff is to create a report of the related costs for abating or removing any remaining nuisance(s) from the
Property and to provide such report back to the City Council for approval of the costs related to the same.

5. The provisions of the Resolution are severable. If any part of the Resolution is determined to be invalid,
unenforceable or unconstitutional, such determination shall not affect any other part of this Resolution.

6. The City Budget is amended to fund the deceleration of public Nuisance abatements.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12/14/2020
CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA
___________________________________ ______________________
DAVID MILLER, MAYOR               DATE

ATTEST:
 

AYES _______
NAYS _______

ABSENT FROM
VOTING _______

___________________________________ ABSTAIN _______
Toushi Arbitelle,
CITY CLERK

I, Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk of the City of Leeds, hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted by the City
Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on 12/14/2020

___________________________________
Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk

148



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82491374&ciDisplay=null 3/6

Document: 

Date Taken:12/11/2020 Taken by:Kathy Capps
Address:1332 BEECH ST Case Number:20-002225

149



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82491374&ciDisplay=null 4/6

Document: 

Date Taken:12/11/2020 Taken by:Kathy Capps
Address:1332 BEECH ST Case Number:20-002225

150



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82491374&ciDisplay=null 5/6

Document: 

Date Taken:12/11/2020 Taken by:Kathy Capps
Address:1332 BEECH ST Case Number:20-002225

151



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82491374&ciDisplay=null 6/6

City of Leeds, Alabama
Department of Development Services

1404 9th St. Leeds, AL 35094
205-699-2585 development@leedsalabama.gov

KENDRICK MATTIE & MARY L
1332 BEECH ST 
LEEDS, AL 35094-3241

Reference: 20-002225
Parcel ID: 2500224000005000

NOTICE AND ORDER TO ABATE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT KENDRICK MATTIE & MARY L is in violation of Chapter 32 of the City of Leeds,
Municipal Code. The violation has been investigated, declared a public nuisance by the City Enforcement Officer and must
be abated immediately.
The public nuisance is on property located at: 1332 BEECH ST LEEDS, AL 35094
YOU ARE HEREBY ORDERED TO ABATE SAID PUBLIC NUISANCE within ten (10) days consecutive calendar days
from the issuance of this Order. The issuance date is specified below. You may abate the nuisance by
REMOVE ITEMS IN VIOLATION OF ORD. 2016-02-04

Section: Sec 32-76-c
Description: Inoperable/Unlicensed Vehicle
Corrective Action: Remove Offending Vehicles 10 Days
Comments: REMOVE INOPERABLE VEHICLES

If you fail to abate the public nuisance within ten (10) days, the City may order its abatement by public employees, private
contractor, or other means, and the cost of said abatement may be levied and assessed against the property as a special
assessment lien or billed directly to the property owner.
This Matter will be heard at a hearing before the City Council on NOV 16 AT 6PM  at the Leeds City Hall Annex located at
1412 9th St., Leeds, Alabama. The decision of the City Council on this Matter will be final and conclusive.
YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO BE HEARD at the hearing identified above. You have the right to:
1. Be present at the hearing and to present your evidence against this Order in writing prior to the hearing;
2. Provide your written statement against the Order and to specify the reasons not to enforce the Order, containing your
name, address and telephone number,
3. Submit your written statement & request to be heard to the following address within at least 24 hours prior to the subject
hearing: 1404 9th St, Leeds, Alabama. (205) 699-2585
In the event that the hearing results in confirmation of a public nuisance, the City will take the necessary steps to abate the
nuisance and assess all costs against the subject property. The City also reserves the right to forward the matter to the
Municipal Court for further enforcement actions pursuant to Chapter 32 of the City Code.
If you have any questions regarding this matter, you may direct them to the City Enforcement Officer issuing this Notice at
the address or telephone number listed above.

Signed:______________________
               Enforcement Officer ISSUANCE DATE: October 08, 2020

 

152



File Attachments for Item:

7. Minutes from November 16, 2020

153



Page 1 of 5 
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting  

November 16, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Leeds Municipal Annex - 1412 9th St, Leeds, AL 35094 

November 16, 2020 @ 6:00 PM 

 

 
CALL COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER 

Mayor David Miller called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm. 

ROLL CALL / INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENT 
Mayor David Miller 
Council member Eric Turner 
Council member Johnny Dutton 
Council member Ryan Bell 
Council member Kenneth Washington 
Council member DeVoris Ragland-Pierce 

INVOCATION 

Council member Eric Turner 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor David Miller 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

1. RA20-00004: A request for the Rezoning of a Certain Property at 1400 7th Court from I-2 
(Industrial District) to T-4 (General Urban Transect Zone) 

No one was present. There was no Public Comment. The matter was referred to Council. 

2. Consider Determination of Certain Conditions to be a Public Nuisance and an Unsafe Building 
at 7580 Cahaba Avenue 

No one was present. There was no Public Comment. The matter was referred to Council. 

3. B20-000001: Request for an Alcoholic Beverage License at 7296 Parkway Drive 

No one was present. There was no Public Comment. The matter was referred to Council. 

Public Hearing closed at 6:03 pm. 

APPROVE COUNCIL MINUTES 

4. Minutes from October 19, 2020 

Motion to approve minutes from October 19, 2020 made by Council member Dutton, 
Seconded by Council member Bell. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, 
Council member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member 

154



Page 2 of 5 
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting  

November 16, 2020 

Ragland-Pierce 
 

5. Minutes from November 02, 2020 

Motion to approve minutes from November 02, 2020 made by Council member Dutton, 
Seconded by Council member Bell. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, 
Council member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member 
Ragland-Pierce 
 

6. Minutes from November 04, 2020 

Motion  to approve minutes from November 04, 2020made by Council member Dutton, 
Seconded by Council member Bell. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, 
Council member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member 
Ragland-Pierce 
 

REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

7. Mayor's Report: Mayor David Miller 

Mayor Miller made the following Committee assignments: 

Public Safety: Council member Washington & Council member Bell 

Parks & Recreation: Council member Turner 

Library: Council member DeVoris Ragland-Pierce 

Finance: Council member Dutton & Council member Turner 

8. Police Department: Chief Atkinson 

Absent 

9. Fire Department: Chief Parsons 

Chief Parsons gave a report of the new radio purchase. 

10. Library: Library Director Carden 

October 2020 report is in packet 

11. Municipal Court: Magistrate Roberts 

October 2020 report was handed to Mayor & Council. 

12. Development Services Department: Zoning Administrator Watson 

No Report 

13. Public Works Department: Public Works Director Warren 

No Report 

OLD BUSINESS: 

There was none. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

14. Ordinance 2020-11-02: Consider Determination of Assenting to the Rezoning at 1400 7th 
Court 

155



Page 3 of 5 
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting  

November 16, 2020 

Motion for Unanimous Consent made by Council member Turner, Seconded by Council 
member Washington. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council member 
Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member Ragland-Pierce. 

Motion to approve Ordinance 2020-11-02 made by Council member Bell, Seconded by 
Council member Washington. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council member Dutton, Council member 
Bell, Council member Washington, Council member Ragland-Pierce. 
 

15. Resolution 2020-11-02: Consider Adoption and Ratification of October 2020 City 
Expenditures/Payables 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-02 made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by 
Council member Bell. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council member 
Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member Ragland-Pierce 
 

16. Resolution 2020-11-03: Consider Certain Professional Services Relating to Employee 
Benefits for City Employees  

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-03 made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by 
Council member Washington. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council 
member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member 
Ragland-Pierce 
 

17. Resolution 2020-11-04: Consider Amending Traffic Controls at Katherine St and Lynn Ave 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-04 made by Council member Bell, Seconded by 
Council member Ragland-Pierce. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council 
member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member 
Ragland-Pierce 
 

18. Resolution 2020-11-05: Consider Approval of ALDOT STPAA-HSIP-0004 (549) - US 78 
(Parkway Drive) Resurface 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-05 made by Council member Washington, Seconded 
by Council member Turner. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council 
member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member 
Ragland-Pierce 
 

19. Resolution 2020-11-06: Consider Approval of ALDOT STPAA-HSIP-0025 (561) - SR-25 
(Dunnavant Road, Part of Parkway Drive, Part of 9th St, Whitmire St, Ashville Rd to St Clair 
Co. line) Resurface 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-06 made by Council member Bell, Seconded by 
Council member Dutton. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council member 
Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member Ragland-Pierce 
 

20. Resolution 2020-11-07: Consider Approving ALDOT agreement for Traffic Signal at I-20 
EB/US 78 (PARKWAY DR) 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-07 made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by 
Council member Washington. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council 
member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member 

156



Page 4 of 5 
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting  

November 16, 2020 

Ragland-Pierce 
 

21. Resolution 2020-11-08: Consider Determination of Certain Conditions to be a Public Nuisance 
and an Unsafe Building at 7580 Cahaba Avenue 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-08 made by Council member Washington, Seconded 
by Council member Bell. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council member 
Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member Ragland-Pierce 
 

22. Resolution 2020-11-09: Consider Approval of City Lockbox Banking Services 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-09 made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by 
Council member Bell. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council member 
Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member Ragland-Pierce 
 

23. Resolution 2020-11-10: Consider approval of expenditures for certain traffic control measures 
at I-20, Exit 140 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-10 made by Council member Turner, Seconded by 
Council member Dutton. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council member 
Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member Ragland-Pierce 
 

24. Resolution 2020-11-11: Consider Nominations for Mayor Pro Tempore 

Mayor Miller opened the floor for nominations for Mayor Pro Tempore.  Motion to nominate 
Kenneth Washington as Mayor Pro Tempore made by Council member Ragland-Pierce, 
Seconded by Council member Turner.  Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, 
Council member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member 
Ragland-Pierce 
 

25. Resolution 2020-11-12: Consider Approval of Alcohol License to KRUPALU LLC /dba/ S and 
K Food Mart at 7296 Parkway Drive 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-12 made by Council member Washington, Seconded 
by Council member Turner. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council 
member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member 
Ragland-Pierce 
 

26. Resolution 2020-11-13: Consider Business License Tax Refund Request 

Motion to approve Resolution 2020-11-13 made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by 
Council member Ragland-Pierce. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council 
member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member Washington, Council member 
Ragland-Pierce 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

Ms. Bonnie Garrett, 7538 Poplar Avenue, addressed Mayor and Council regarding her on-going problem 
with a loose dog in her neighborhood. 

157



Page 5 of 5 
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting  

November 16, 2020 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn made by Council member Turner, Seconded by Council member Bell. Voting Yea: 
Mayor Miller, Council member Turner, Council member Dutton, Council member Bell, Council member 
Washington, Council member Ragland-Pierce 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:54 pm. 
 

_________________________  

David Miller, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

_________________________  

Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

158



File Attachments for Item:

13. Development Services Department: City Administrator Watson

159



160



Department Hours- OT 
11/17/20 to 11/30/20

Department OT COM FDC Totals
86:00 19:30 2:00 107:30

Attendance on Demand 1.6.40.1062   Dec-03 20 01:19pm Page 1 of 1

ADMIN 1:37 1:37
COURT 4:16 4:16
DEV 0:36 0:36
FIRE 4:00 2:00 6:00
LIBRARY 19:30 19:30
POLICE 32:52 32:52
STREET 42:39 42:39

161



File Attachments for Item:

15. Ordinance 2020-12-01 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 

Consider Approval of Spectrum Franchise Renewal 

162



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CABLE TELEVISION FRANCHISE ORDINANCE 

 

 

FOR  

 

 

LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

 

AND 

 

 

SPECTRUM SOUTHEAST, LLC 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

163



 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1.  SHORT TITLE AND DEFINITIONS ......................................................................1 

1. Short Title ....................................................................................................1 

2. Definitions....................................................................................................2 

SECTION 2.  GRANT OF AUTHORITY AND GENERAL PROVISIONS.................................5 

1. Grant of Franchise........................................................................................5 

2. Grant of Nonexclusive Authority.................................................................5 

3. Franchise Term ............................................................................................6 

4. Previous Franchises. ....................................................................................6 

5. Compliance with Applicable Laws, Resolutions and Ordinances ...............6 

6. Written Notice ..............................................................................................6 

SECTION 3.  CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS ...........................................................................7 

1. Registration, Permits Construction Codes and Cooperation........................7 

2. Minimum Interference .................................................................................8 

3. Disturbance or damage……………………………………………………8 

4. Temporary Relocation .................................................................................9 

5. Emergency ...................................................................................................9 

6. Tree Trimming .............................................................................................9 

7. Protection of facilities ..................................................................................9 

  8. Installation records………………………………………………………..9 

9.         Locating facilities…………………………………………………………9 

10.       Relocation delays .......................................................................................10 

11. Interference with City Facilities……………………………………... 10 

12.       Safety Requirements……………………………………………………. 10 

 

SECTION 4.  DESIGN PROVISIONS .........................................................................................10 

 

1. System Upgrade: Minimum Channel CapaCity ........................................10 

2. System Construction 

  3. Interruption of Service 

4. Emergency Alert Capability ......................................................................11 

5. Technical Standards ...................................................................................11 

 

7. FCC Reports...............................................................................................11 

8. Annexation .................................................................................................11 

9. Line Extension ............................................................................................... 

SERVICE 5. SERVICE PROVISIONS .........................................................................................12 

1. Non-Standard Installations.........................................................................12 

2. Sales Procedures ........................................................................................12 

3. Consumer Protection and Service Standards .............................................12 

4. Subscriber Contracts ..................................................................................15 

5. Refund Policy.............................................................................................17 

6. Late Fees ....................................................................................................16 

164



 
 

 

SECTION 6.   OPERATION AND ADMINISTRATION PROVISIONS ...................................16 

1. Administration of Franchise 

2. Franchise Fee .............................................................................................16 

  3. Discounted Rates………………………………………………………...18 

4. Access to Records ......................................................................................17 

5. Reports to be Filed with City .....................................................................17 

SECTION 7. GENERAL FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS ..............................17 

1. Liability Insurance .....................................................................................17 

2. Indemnification ..........................................................................................18 

SECTION 8. SALE, ABANDONMENT, TRANSFER AND REVOCATION OF FRANCHISE

 19 

1. City’s Right to Revoke...............................................................................19 

2. Procedures for Revocation .........................................................................19 

  3. Removal After Abandonment, Termination or Forfeiture………………21 

4. Franchise Transfer……………………………………………………….21 

SECTION 9. PROTECTION OF INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS ..........................................................20 

1. Discriminatory Practices Prohibited ..........................................................20 

2. Subscriber Privacy .....................................................................................20 

SECTION 10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ......................................................................21 

1. Franchise Renewal .....................................................................................21 

2. Work Performed by Others ........................................................................21 

3. Amendment of Franchise Ordinance .........................................................21 

4. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws.......................................21 

5. Nonenforcement by City ............................................................................21 

6. Rights Cumulative .....................................................................................21 

 

8. Force Majeure ............................................................................................22 

SECTION 11. PUBLICATION EFFECTIVE DATE; ACCEPTANCE AND EXHIBITS ..........22 

1. Publication, Effective Date ........................................................................22 

2. Acceptance .................................................................................................22 

 

EXHIBIT A. FRANCHISE FEE PAYMENT WORKSHEET .............................................    B-1 

EXIBIT B.  GRANTEE COMPLIMENTARY LOCATIONS TO CITY LOCATIONS       B-2 

 

165



 

B-1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-12-01 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO SPECTRUM SOUTHEAST, LLC, L/K/A 

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS, TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, AND MAINTAIN A 

CABLE SYSTEM IN LEEDS, ALABAMA SETTING FORTH CONDITIONS 

ACCOMPANYING THE GRANT OF THE FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR REGULATION 

AND USE OF THE SYSTEM AND THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND PRESCRIBING 

PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS HEREIN; 

The City Council of Leeds Alabama ordains: 

STATEMENT OF INTENT AND PURPOSE 

City intends, by the adoption of this Franchise, to bring about the further development of a Cable 

System, and the continued operation of it.  Such development can contribute significantly to the 

communication needs and desires of the residents and citizens of City and the public generally.  

Further, City may achieve better utilization and improvement of public services and enhanced 

economic development with the development and operation of a Cable System. 

Adoption of this Franchise is, in the judgment of the City Council, in the best interests of City 

and its residents. 

FINDINGS 

In the review of the request for renewal by Grantee and negotiations related thereto, and as a 

result of a public hearing, the City Council makes the following findings: 

1. Grantee has substantially complied with the material terms of the current Franchise under 

applicable laws; 

 

2. Grantee’s technical ability, financial condition, legal qualifications, and character were 

considered and approved in a full public proceeding after due notice and a reasonable 

opportunity to be heard; 

3. Grantee’s plans for operating the Cable System were considered and found adequate and 

feasible in a full public proceeding after due notice and a reasonable opportunity to be 

heard; 

4. The Franchise granted to Grantee by City complies with the existing applicable state 

statutes, federal laws and regulations; and 

5. The Franchise granted to Grantee is nonexclusive. 

SECTION 1. 

SHORT TITLE AND DEFINITIONS 

 

1. Short Title.  This Franchise Ordinance shall be known and cited as the Cable Television 

Franchise Ordinance. 

166



 

 

2 
 

2. Definitions.  For the purposes of this Franchise, the following terms, phrases, words, and 

their derivations shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Cable Communications 

Policy Act of 1984, as amended from time to time (the “Cable Act”), unless otherwise 

defined herein.  When not inconsistent with the context, words in the singular number 

include the plural number, and words in the plural number include the singular number.  

The word “shall” is always mandatory and not merely directory.  The word “may” is 

directory and discretionary and not mandatory.  Words not defined shall be given their 

common and ordinary meaning. 

a. “Applicable Laws” means any law, statute, charter, ordinance, rule, regulation, 

code, license, certificate, franchise, permit, writ, ruling, award, executive order, 

directive, requirement, injunction (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent), 

judgment, decree or other order issued, executed, entered or deemed applicable by 

any governmental authority. 

b. “Basic Cable Service” means any Service tier which includes the lawful 

retransmission of local television broadcast signals and any public, educational, 

and governmental access programming required by the Franchise to be carried on 

the basic tier.  Basic Cable Service as defined herein shall be the definition set 

forth in 47 U.S.C. § 543(b) (7). 

c. “City Council” means the governing body of Leeds, Alabama. 

d. “Cable Act” shall mean the Cable Communications Act of 1984, as amended, 47 

U.S.C. §§ 521, et. seq. 

e. “Cable Service” or “Service” means (A) the one-way transmission to Subscribers 

of (i) Video Programming or (ii) Other Programming Service, and (B) Subscriber 

interaction, if any, which is required for the selection or use of such Video 

Programming or Other Programming Service.  Cable Service as defined herein 

shall be the definition set forth in 47 U.S.C. § 522(6). 

f. “Cable System” or “System” means a facility, consisting of a set of closed 

transmission paths and associated signal generation, reception, and control 

equipment that is designed to provide Cable Service which includes Video 

Programming and which is provided to multiple Subscribers within a community, 

but such term does not include: 

i. a facility that serves only to retransmit the television signals of one (1) or 

more television broadcast stations; 

ii. a facility that serves Subscribers without using any public Right-of-Way; 

iii. a facility of common carrier which is subject, in whole or in part, to the 

provisions of 47 U.S.C. § 201 et seq., except that such facility shall be 

considered a Cable System (other than for purposes of 47 U.S.C. § 541(c)) 

to the extent such facility is used in the transmission of Video 

167



 

 

3 
 

Programming directly to Subscribers, unless the extent of such use is 

solely to provide interactive on-demand services; 

iv. an open video system that complies with 47 U.S.C. § 573; or 

v. any facilities of any electric utility used solely for operating its electric 

utility systems. 

vi. Cable System as defined herein shall be the definition set forth in 47 

U.S.C. § 522(7). 

g. “Channel” or “Cable Channel” means a portion of the electromagnetic frequency 

spectrum which is used in a Cable System and which is capable of delivering a 

television Channel as defined by the FCC.  Cable Channel as defined herein shall 

be the definition set forth in 47 U.S.C. § 522(4). 

h. “City” or “Grantor” means Leeds, a municipal corporation, in the State of 

Alabama, acting by and through its City Council, or its lawfully appointed 

designee. 

i. “Drop” means the cable that connects the ground block on the Subscriber’s 

residence to the nearest distribution point of the System. 

j. “FCC” means the Federal Communications Commission and any legally 

appointed, designated or elected agent or successor. 

k. “Franchise” or “Cable Franchise” means this franchise ordinance and the 

regulatory and contractual relationship established hereby. 

l. “Franchise Fee” includes any tax, fee, or assessment of any kind imposed by the 

City or other governmental entity on Grantee or Subscriber, or both, solely 

because of their status as such.  It does not include any tax, fee, or assessment of 

general applicability (including any such tax, fee, or assessment imposed on both 

utilities and cable operators or their services but not including a tax, fee, or 

assessment which is unduly discriminatory against cable operators or cable 

Subscribers); capital costs which are required by the Franchise to be incurred by 

Grantee for public, educational, or governmental access facilities; requirements or 

charges incidental to the awarding or enforcing of the Franchise, including 

payments for bonds, security funds, letters of credit, insurance, indemnification, 

penalties, or liquidated damages; or any fee imposed under Title 17 of the United 

States Code.  Franchise Fee defined herein shall be the definition set forth in 47 

U.S.C. § 542(g). 

m. “Grantee” is Spectrum Southeast, LLC ("Charter Communications"), its lawful 

successors, transferees or assignees. 

n. “Gross Revenue” means any and all revenue derived by Grantee from the 

operation of its Cable System to provide Cable Service within the City including, 

168



 

 

4 
 

but not limited to, 1) all Cable Service fees, 2) Franchise Fees, 3) late fees and, 

43) Installation and reconnection fees, 54) upgrade and downgrade fees, 65) local, 

state and national advertising revenue, 76) home shopping commissions, 87) 

equipment rental fees, and 98) written or electronic Channel guide revenue.  The 

term “Gross Revenue” shall not include launch fees, bad debts or any taxes or 

fees on Services furnished by Grantee imposed upon Subscribers by any 

municipality, state or other governmental unit, credits, refunds and any amounts 

collected from Subscribers for deposits. City and Grantee acknowledge and agree 

that Grantee will maintain its books and records in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

o. “Installation” means any connection of the System from distribution cable to the 

point of connection including Standard Installations and custom Installations with 

the Subscriber Converter or other terminal equipment. 

p. “Normal Business Hours” means those hours during which most similar 

businesses in City are open to serve customers.  In all cases, “Normal Business 

Hours” must include some evening hours, at least one (1) night per week and/or 

some weekend hours.  Normal Business Hours as defined herein shall be the 

definition set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 76.309. 

q. “Normal Operating Conditions” means those Service conditions which are within 

the control of Grantee.  Those conditions which are not within the control of 

Grantee include, but are not limited to, natural disasters, civil disturbances, power 

outages, telephone network outages, and severe or unusual weather conditions.  

Those conditions which are ordinarily within the control of Grantee include, but 

are not limited to, special promotions, pay-per-view events, rate increases, regular 

peak or seasonal demand periods, and maintenance or upgrade of the Cable 

System.  Normal Operating Conditions as defined herein shall be the definition 

set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 76.309. 

r. “Other Programming Service” means information that a cable operator makes 

available to all Subscribers generally.  Other Programming Services as defined 

herein shall be the definition set forth in 47 U.S.C. § 522 (14). 

s. “Person” is any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, company, 

limited liability entity or other legal entity. 

t. “Right-of-Way” or “Rights-of-Way” means the area on, below, or above any real 

property in City in which the City has an interest including, but not limited to any 

street, road, highway, alley, sidewalk, parkway, utility easements or any other 

place, area, or real property owned by or under the control of City which are 

dedicated for compatible use. 

u. “Right-of-Way Ordinance” means any ordinance or other applicable code 

requirements regarding regulation, management and use of Rights-of-Way in 

City, including permitting requirements. 

169



 

 

5 
 

v. “Service Area” or “Franchise Area” means the entire geographic area within the 

City as it is now constituted or may in the future be constituted. 

w. “Service Interruption” means the loss of picture or sound on one (1) or more 

Cable Channels.  Service Interruption as defined herein shall be the definition set 

forth in 47 C.F.R. § 76.309.  

x. “Standard Installation” means any residential Installation which can be completed 

using an aerial Drop of one hundred twenty-five (125) feet or less. 

y. “Subscriber” means any Person who receives broadcast programming distributed 

by a Cable System and does not further distribute it.  Subscriber as defined herein 

shall be the definition set forth in 47 C.F.R. § 76.5(ee). 

z. “Video Programming” means programming provided by, or generally considered 

comparable to programming provided by, a television broadcast station.  Video 

Programming as defined herein shall be the definition set forth in 47 U.S.C. 

§ 522(20). 

SECTION 2. 

GRANT OF AUTHORITY AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

1. Grant of Franchise.  This Franchise is granted pursuant to the terms and conditions 

contained herein.   

2. Grant of Nonexclusive Authority. 

a. The Grantee shall have the right and privilege, subject to the permitting and other 

lawful requirements of City ordinance, rule or procedure, to construct, erect, and 

maintain, in, upon, along, across, above, over and under the Rights-of-Way in 

City a Cable System and shall have the right and privilege to provide Cable 

Service under the Franchise Agreement.  The System constructed and maintained 

by Grantee or its agents shall not interfere with other uses of the Rights-of-Way.  

Grantee shall make use of existing poles and other above and below ground 

facilities available to Grantee to the extent it is technically and economically 

feasible to do so. 

b. This Franchise shall be nonexclusive, and City reserves the right to grant use of 

said Rights-of-Way to any Person at any time during the period of this Franchise 

for the provision of Cable Service. 

c. If any other wireline provider of cable services or video services (without regard to 

the technology used to deliver such services) is lawfully authorized by the Grantor 

to provide such services using facilities located wholly or partly in the public rights-

of-way of the Grantor, the Grantor shall within thirty (30) days of a written request 

from Grantee, modify this Franchise to insure that the obligations applicable to 

Grantee are no more burdensome than those imposed on the new competing 

provider.  If the Grantor fails to make modifications consistent with this 

170



 

 

6 
 

requirement, Grantee’s Franchise shall be deemed so modified thirty (30) days after 

the Grantee’s initial written notice.  Nothing herein shall be deemed a waiver of 

any remedies available to Grantee under Applicable Laws, including the right to 

seek judicial review to mandate Grantor amend the franchise to ensure competitive 

equity between similarly situated competitive providers. 

 

3. Franchise Term.  This Franchise shall be in effect for a period of ten (10) years from the 

date of execution by City, unless sooner renewed, revoked or terminated as herein 

provided. 

4. Previous Franchises.  Upon acceptance by Grantee as required by Section 11.2 herein, 

this Franchise shall supersede and replace any previous ordinance or other authorization 

granting a franchise to Grantee.  

5. Compliance with Applicable Laws, Resolutions and Ordinances. 

a. The terms of this Franchise shall define the contractual rights and obligations of 

Grantee with respect to the provision of Cable Service and operation of the 

System in City.  However, Grantee shall at all times during the term of this 

Franchise be subject to all lawful exercise of the police power, of the City.  This 

Franchise may also be modified or amended with the mutual written consent of 

City and Grantee as provided in Section 10.3 herein. 

b. Grantor shall at all times be subject to and comply with all Applicable Laws with 

respect to this Franchise.  

c. Grantee shall comply with the terms of any City ordinance or regulation of 

general applicability which addresses usage of the Rights-of-Way within City, 

provided that it does not discriminate between different users of the Rights-of-

Way.  

d. In the event of any conflict between this Franchise and any City ordinance or 

regulation which addresses usage of the Rights-of-Way, the terms of this 

Franchise shall govern, provided however Grantee shall at all times comply with 

City ordinances of general applicability promulgated by the City in accordance 

with its police powers. 

6. Written Notice.  All notices, reports, or demands required to be given in writing under 

this Franchise shall be sent via registered or certified mail or shall be deemed to be given 

when delivered personally to any officer of Grantee or City Clerk or forty-eight (48) 

hours after it is deposited in the United States mail in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid 

thereon, addressed to the party to whom notice is being given, as follows: 

If to City:  City of Leeds 

   Attn: Mayor 

  1400 9th St NE 

  Leeds, AL 35094  

  

171



 

 

7 
 

 If to Grantee: Charter Communications 

  601 Massachusetts Avenue, NW, Ste 400  

  Washington, DC 20001 

           

 With nonbinding courtesy copies to:  

 

                                     Charter Communications 

                                                Attn: Government Relations Director 

  151 London Parkway  

  Birmingham, AL 35211 

 

Such addresses may be changed by either party upon notice to the other party given as 

provided in this section. 

 

SECTION 3. 

CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 

 

1. Registration, Permits, Construction Codes, and Cooperation. 

a. Grantee shall comply with the construction requirements of local, state and 

federal laws. 

b. Grantee agrees to obtain a permit as required by City prior to removing, 

abandoning, relocating or reconstructing, if necessary, any portion of its facilities.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, City understands and acknowledges there may be 

instances when Grantee is required to make repairs, in compliance with federal or 

state laws, that are of an emergency nature.  Grantee will notify City prior to such 

repairs, if practicable, and will obtain the necessary permits in a reasonable time 

after notification to City. 

c. City may issue reasonable policy guidelines to all grantees to establish procedures 

for determining how to control issuance of engineering permits to multiple 

grantees for the use of the same Rights-of-Way for their facilities.  Grantee shall 

cooperate with City in establishing such policy and comply, to the extent 

technically feasible, with the procedures established by the Mayor or his or her 

designee to coordinate the issuance of multiple engineering permits in the same 

Right-of-Way segments. 

d. Failure to obtain permits or comply with permit requirements shall subject 

Grantee to all enforcement remedies available to City under Applicable Laws or 

this Franchise. 

e. Grantee shall have the opportunity to meet with developers and be present at pre-

construction meetings to ensure that the newly constructed Cable System facilities 

are installed in new developments, within the City where extension of service is 

economically feasible at Grantee’s discretion, in a timely manner upon written 

notification of such meetings to the Grantee. 

172



 

 

8 
 

f. If requested by the City, Grantee shall meet with the City within 90 days to hold 

an annual meeting with City to coordinate construction plans of both parties for 

the upcoming year. 

g.   Subject to Applicable Laws, when City uses its prior superior right to the Rights-

of-Way and public ways, Grantee shall move its property that is located in the 

Rights-of-Way and public ways, at its own cost, to such a location as City  directs. 

Grantee’s System construction shall at all times comply with Applicable Laws, 

which City agrees shall be applied on a nondiscriminatory basis.  Nothing in this 

Franchise shall be construed to prevent City from constructing, maintaining, 

repairing or relocating sewers; grading, paving, maintaining, repairing, relocating 

and/or altering any Right-of-Way; constructing, laying down, repairing, 

maintaining or relocating any water mains; or constructing, maintaining, 

relocating, or repairing any sidewalk or other public work.  

2. Minimum Interference.   

a. Grantee shall use commercially reasonable efforts to give reasonable prior notice 

to any adjacent private property owners who will be negatively affected or 

impacted by Grantee’s work in the Rights-of-Way. 

b. All transmission and distribution structures, lines and equipment erected by 

Grantee shall be located so as to cause minimum interference with the 

unencumbered use of Rights-of-Way and other public places and minimum 

interference with the rights and reasonable convenience of property owners who 

adjoin any of the Rights-of-Way and public places. 

3. Disturbance or damage.  Any and all Rights-of-Way, or public or private property, which 

are disturbed or damaged during the construction, repair, replacement, relocation, 

operation, maintenance, expansion, extension or reconstruction of the System shall be 

promptly and fully restored by Grantee, at its expense, to a condition as good as that 

prevailing prior to Grantee’s work, as determined by City.  If Grantee shall fail to 

promptly perform the restoration required herein, after written request of City and a thirty 

(30) day opportunity to satisfy that request, City shall have the right to put the Rights-of-

Way back into condition as good as that prevailing prior to Grantee’s work.  In the event 

City determines that Grantee is responsible for such disturbance or damage, Grantee shall 

be obligated to fully reimburse City for such restoration within thirty (30) days after its 

receipt of City’s invoice thereof. 

4. Temporary Relocation.   

a. At any time during the period of the Franchise, Grantee shall, at its own expense, 

protect, support, temporarily disconnect, relocate or remove any of its property 

when, in the opinion of City, (i) the same is required by reason of traffic 

conditions, public safety, Rights-of-Way vacation, freeway or Rights-of-Way 

construction, alteration to or establishment of any Rights-of-Way or any facility 

within the Rights-of-Way, sidewalk, or other public place, including but not 

173



 

 

9 
 

limited to, installation of sewers, drains, waterlines, power lines, traffic signal 

lines or transportation facilities; or (ii) a City project or activity makes 

disconnection, removal, or relocation necessary or less expensive for City. 

b. Grantee shall, on request of any Person holding a permit to move a building, 

temporarily raise or lower its wires to permit the movement of such buildings.  

The expense of such temporary removal or raising or lowering of wires shall be 

paid by the Person requesting the same, and Grantee shall have the authority to 

require such payment in advance. Grantee shall be given not less than ten (10) 

days advance notice to arrange such temporary wire alterations. 

5. Emergency.  Whenever, in case of fire or other emergency, it becomes necessary in the 

judgment of the Mayor, police chief, fire chief, or their delegates, to remove or damage 

any of Grantee’s facilities, no charge shall be made by Grantee against City for 

restoration, repair or damages. Grantor is aware that the communication facilities of the 

Grantee can and does transport emergency required communications such as phone and 

internet life monitoring services if a representative of the Grantor disconnects or damages 

the facilities of the Grantee,   

6.         Tree Trimming.  Grantee shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Code of                

Ordinances of the City regarding the trimming of any tress on public property or in the 

Rights-of-Way.  

 

7.         Protection of facilities.  Nothing contained in this section shall relieve any Person from 

liability arising out of the failure to exercise reasonable care to avoid damaging Grantee’s 

facilities while performing any work connected with grading, regarding or changing the 

line of any Rights-of-Way or public place or the construction or reconstruction of any 

sewer or water system. 

 

8.         Installation records.  Grantee shall keep accurate Installation records of the location of all 

facilities in the Rights-of-Way and public ways and, upon written request of City, will 

make them available for viewing to City at Grantee’s office or in a mutually agreed upon 

location.  

  

9.         Locating facilities.   

 

             a.        If, during the design process for public improvements, City discovers a 

                                   potential conflict with proposed construction, Grantee shall either: (a) locate 

                                   and, if necessary, expose its facilities in conflict or (b) use a location service under 

                                   contract with City to locate or expose its facilities.  Grantee is obligated to  

                                   furnish the location information in a timely manner, but in no case longer than                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                   thirty (30) days. 

                              

b. City reserves the prior and superior right to lay, construct, erect, install, use, 

operate, repair, replace, remove, relocate, regrade, widen, realign, or maintain any 

Rights-of-Way and public ways, aerial, surface, or subsurface improvement, 

including but not limited to water mains, traffic control conduits, cable and 

174



 

 

10 
 

devices, sanitary or storm sewers, subways, tunnels, bridges, viaducts, or any 

other public construction within the Rights-of-Way of City limits. 

 

10.       Relocation delays.  

In cases where the City undertakes work in the Right-of-Way, the Grantee shall, upon 

reasonable notice from City, relocate its facilities as reasonably necessary to accommodate 

the City’s work.  The Grantee must promptly provide notice to City of any potential delay 

involving relocation of Grantee’s facilities.  If Grantee’s relocation effort so delays 

construction of a public project causing City to be liable for delay damages, Grantee shall 

reimburse City for those damages attributable to the delay created by Grantee, however 

payment by Grantee shall in no way limit Grantee’s right, if any, to seek reimbursement 

for such costs from any third party.  All of Grantee’s relocation work shall be done in strict 

compliance with the rules, regulations and ordinances of the City and any applicable state 

and federal laws.   

11.       Interference with City Facilities.   

The Installation, use and maintenance of the Grantee’s facilities within the Rights-of-Way 

and public ways authorized herein shall be in such a manner as not to interfere with the 

placement, construction, use and maintenance of its Rights-of-Way and public ways, 

Rights-of-Way lighting, water pipes, drains, sewers, traffic signal systems or other systems 

that have been installed, maintained, used or authorized by City. 

12.       Safety Requirements. 

a. Grantee shall at all times employ ordinary and reasonable care and shall install 

 and maintain in use nothing less than commonly accepted methods and devices 

 for preventing failures and accidents which are likely to cause damage or injuries. 

b. Grantee shall install and maintain its System and other equipment in accordance 

with City’s codes and the requirements of the National Electric Safety Code and 

all other applicable FCC, state and local regulations, and in such manner that they 

will not interfere with City communications technology related to health, safety 

and welfare of the residents. 

c. Cable System structures, and lines, equipment and connections in, over, under and 

upon the Rights-of-Way of City, wherever situated or located, shall at all times be 

kept and maintained in good condition, order, and repair so that the same shall not 

menace or endanger the life or property of City or any Person. 

SECTION 4. 

DESIGN PROVISIONS 

 

1. System Upgrade/Construction: Minimum Channel Capacity. 

a. Grantee shall operate and maintain for the term of this Franchise a System 

capable of providing a minimum of 100 Channels.   

175



 

 

11 
 

b. All final programming decisions remain the discretion of Grantee in accordance 

 with this Franchise and pursuant to 47 U.S.C. §§ 531, 542 and 545.  

2. System Construction.  All transmission lines, equipment and structures shall be so 

installed and located as to cause minimum interference with the rights and reasonable 

convenience of property owners and at all times shall be kept and maintained in a safe, 

adequate and substantial condition, and in good order and repair.  The Grantee shall, at all 

times, employ ordinary care and use commonly accepted methods and devices for 

preventing failures and accidents which are likely to cause damage, injuries, or nuisances 

to the public.  Suitable barricades, flags, lights, flares or other devices shall be used at 

such times and places as are reasonably required for the safety of all members of the 

public.  Any poles or other fixtures placed in any public way by the Grantee shall be 

placed in such a manner as not to interfere with the usual travel on such public way. 

3. Interruption of Service. Grantee shall interrupt Service only for good cause and for the 

shortest time possible.  Such interruption shall occur during periods of minimum use of 

the System.  If Service is interrupted for a total period of more than twenty-four (24) 

continuous hours in any thirty (30) day period, Subscribers shall be credited pro rata for 

such interruption. 

4. Emergency Alert Capability.  Grantee shall at all times comply with the Emergency Alert 

System standards pursuant to Title 47, Section 11, Subparts A-E of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, as may be amended or modified from time to time. 

5. Technical Standards.  The technical standards used in the operation of the System shall 

comply, at minimum, with the technical standards promulgated by the FCC relating to 

Cable Systems pursuant to Title 47, Section 76, Subpart K of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, as may be amended or modified from time to time, which regulations are 

expressly incorporated herein by reference.   

6. FCC Reports.  The results of any tests required to be filed by Grantee with the FCC shall 

upon request of City also be filed with City or its designee within ten (10) days of the 

date of request. 

7. Annexation.  Upon the annexation of any additional land area by the City, if the annexed 

area is not currently served by a cable operator it will be subject to the other provisions of 

this Section 4.  If the annexed area is served by a cable operator, Grantee has the option 

to extend its Cable System to the newly annexed area if Grantee determines that it is 

economically feasible to do so.  Upon the annexation of any additional land area by the 

City, the annexed area shall be subject to all the terms of this Franchise upon sixty (60) 

days of written notification by the City to Grantee.  A cable operator other than Grantee 

whose Cable System already passes homes in an annexed area shall not extend its Cable 

System beyond those homes which it passes at the time the annexation occurs unless it 

otherwise obtains a franchise from the City. In the event the Grantor modifies the Service 

Area by annexation or any other means, the City shall provide at least sixty (60) days 

prior notice to the Grantee. The City shall also notify Grantee of all new street address 

assignments or changes within the Service Area. Said notice shall be in writing to the 

176



 

 

12 
 

address set forth below by U.S. certified mail, return receipt requested. City shall provide 

detail and information, including address files and maps in sufficient detail and in an 

acceptable digital format, if feasible.  Grantee shall begin to collect Franchise Fees from 

Subscribers in any annexed area within ninety (90) days of such notice and address 

information as described above.  Grantee shall not be obligated to collect and remit 

Franchise Fees until such notice and information has been received by Grantee.  

 All notices provided under this subsection shall be delivered to the Grantee at the 

 following address: 

          

                                Charter Communications   

                                Attn: Government Relations Director 

                     151 London Parkway 

                     Birmingham, AL 35211 

 

 Grantee shall provide Grantor thirty (30) days written notice of address changes affecting 

 this subsection pursuant to section 2, paragraph 7.  

    

8. Service Area.  The Grantee shall continue to provide Cable Service to all residences 

within the Service Area where Grantee currently provides Cable Service. Grantee shall 

have the right, but not the obligation, to extend the Cable System into any other portion 

of the Service Area, including annexed areas.  Cable Service offered to Subscribers 

pursuant to this Franchise shall be conditioned upon Grantee having legal access to any 

such Subscriber’s dwelling unit or other units wherein such Cable Service is provided.  

  SECTION 5. 

SERVICE PROVISIONS 

 

1. Non-Standard Installations.  Grantee shall install and provide Cable Service to any 

Person requesting other than a Standard Installation provided that said Cable Service can 

meet FCC technical specifications and all payment and policy obligations are met.  In 

such case, Grantee may charge for the incremental increase in material and labor costs 

incurred beyond the Standard Installation. 

2. Sales Procedures.  Grantee shall have the right to market door-to-door during reasonable 

hours consistent with local ordinances and regulation.  Grantee’s sales personnel will not 

be required to compensate City for any permit that may be required. 

3. Consumer Protection and Service Standards. The Grantee shall comply with all 

applicable federal regulations relating to customer service obligations, including any 

amendments to 47 C.F.R. § 76.309 during the term of this Franchise, which for the 

parties’ convenience are set forth below as they exist on the Effective Date. 

a. Cable System office hours and telephone availability. 

i. Grantee will maintain a local, toll-free or collect call telephone access line 

which will be available to its Subscribers twenty-four (24) hours a day, 

seven (7) days a week. 

177



 

 

13 
 

(1) Trained Grantee representatives will be available to respond to 

customer telephone inquiries during Normal Business Hours. 

(2) After Normal Business Hours, the access line may be answered by 

a service or an automated response system, including an answering 

machine.  Inquiries received after Normal Business Hours must be 

responded to by a trained Grantee representative on the next 

business day. 

ii. Under Normal Operating Conditions, telephone answer time by a 

customer representative, including wait time, shall not exceed thirty (30) 

seconds when the connection is made.  If the call needs to be transferred, 

transfer time shall not exceed thirty (30) seconds.  These standards shall 

be met no less then ninety percent (90%) of the time under Normal 

Operating Conditions, measured on a quarterly basis. 

iii. Grantee shall not be required to acquire equipment or perform surveys to 

measure compliance with the telephone answering standards above unless 

an historical record of complaints indicates a clear failure to comply. 

iv. Under Normal Operating Conditions, the customer will receive a busy 

signal less than three percent (3%) of the time. 

v. Customer service center and bill payment locations will be open at least 

during Normal Business Hours and will be conveniently located. 

b. Installations, Outages and Service Calls.  Under Normal Operating Conditions, 

each of the following standards will be met no less than ninety-five percent (95%) 

of the time measured on a quarterly basis. 

i. Standard Installations will be performed within seven (7) business days 

after an order has been placed.  “Standard” Installations are those that are 

located up to one hundred twenty-five (125) feet from the connection 

point of the existing distribution system. 

ii. Excluding conditions beyond the control of Grantee, Grantee will begin 

working on “Service Interruptions” promptly and in no event later than 

twenty-four (24) hours after the interruption becomes known. Grantee 

must begin actions to correct other Service problems the next business day 

after notification of the Service problem. 

iii. The “appointment window” alternatives for Installations, Service calls, 

and other Installation activities will be either a specific time or, at 

maximum, a four (4) hour time block during Normal Business Hours.  

(Grantee may schedule Service calls and other Installation activities 

outside of Normal Business Hours for the express convenience of the 

customer.) 

iv. Grantee may not cancel an appointment with a customer after the close of 

business on the business day prior to the scheduled appointment. 

v. If Grantee’s representative is running late for an appointment with a 

customer and will not be able to keep the appointment as scheduled, the 

178



 

 

14 
 

customer will be contacted.  The appointment will be rescheduled, as 

necessary, at a time which is convenient for the customer. 

c. Communications between Grantee and Subscribers. 

i. Notifications to Subscribers: 

(1) Grantee will provide written information on each of the following 

areas at the time of Installation of Service, at least annually to all 

Subscribers, and at any time upon request: 

(a) Products and Services offered; 

(b) Prices and options for programming Services and 

conditions of subscription to programming and other 

Services; 

(c) Installation and Service maintenance policies; 

(d) Instructions on how to use the Cable Service; 

(e) Channel positions of programming carried on the System; 

and 

(f) Billing and complaint procedures, including the address   

and telephone number of the nearest customer service 

center. 

(2) Subscribers will be notified of any changes in rates, programming 

Services or Channel positions as soon as possible in writing.  

Notice must be given to Subscribers a minimum of thirty (30) days 

in advance of such changes if the change is within the control of 

the Grantee.  In addition, the Grantee shall notify Subscribers thirty 

(30) days in advance of any significant changes in the other 

information required by Section 76.1602. 

(3) In addition to the requirement of subparagraph (2) of this section 

regarding advance notification to Subscribers of any changes in 

rates, programming services or Channel positions, Grantee shall 

give thirty (30) days written notice to both Subscribers and the 

City before implementing any rate or Service change.  Such notice 

shall state the precise amount of any rate change and briefly 

explain in readily understandable fashion the cause of the rate 

change (e.g., inflation, change in external costs or the 

addition/deletion of Channels). When the change involves the   

deletion of Channels, each Channel deleted must be separately 

identified.  For purposes of the carriage of digital broadcast 

signals, the Grantee need only identify for Subscribers, the 

television signal location and not whether that signal may be 

multiplexed during certain day parts. 

179



 

 

15 
 

(4) To the extent Grantee is required to provide notice of Service and 

rate changes to Subscribers, the Grantee may provide such notice 

using any reasonable written means at its sole discretion. 

(5) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, Grantee shall 

not be required to provide prior notice of any rate change that is 

the result of a regulatory fee, Franchise Fee, or any other fee, tax, 

assessment, or charge of any kind imposed by any federal agency, 

state, or City on the transaction between the Grantee and the 

Subscriber. 

ii. Billing: 

(1) Consistent with 47 C.F.R. § 76.1619, bills will be clear, concise 

and understandable.  Bills must be fully itemized, with 

itemizations including, but not limited to, Basic Cable Service and 

premium Service charges and equipment charges.  Bills will also 

clearly delineate all activity during the billing period, including 

optional charges, rebates and credits. 

(2) In case of a billing dispute, the Grantee must respond to a written 

complaint from a Subscriber within thirty (30) days. 

iii. Refunds:  Refund checks will be issued promptly, but no later than either: 

(1) The Subscriber’s next billing cycle following resolution of the 

request or thirty (30) days, whichever is earlier, or 

(2) The return of the equipment supplied by Grantee if Service is 

terminated. 

iv. Credits: Credits for Service will be issued no later than the Subscriber's 

next billing cycle following the determination that a credit is warranted. 

4. Subscriber Contracts.  Upon request, Grantee shall file with City any standard form 

residential Subscriber contract utilized by Grantee.  If no such written contract exists, 

upon request, Grantee shall file with the City a document completely and concisely 

stating the length and terms of the Subscriber contract offered to customers.  The length 

and terms of any Subscriber contract(s) shall be available for public inspection during 

Normal Business Hours.  A list of Grantee’s current Subscriber rates and charges for 

Cable Service is maintained in Grantee’s public file, and upon request, shall be available 

for public inspection. A copy of Grantee’s current rate card can be located at 

http://www.charter.com/browse/content/rate-card-info.  A copy of Grantee’s current 

channel line-up for Leeds AL can be located at http://www.charter.com/browse/tv-

service/tv#Channel-Lineup 

5. Refund Policy.  If a Subscriber’s Cable Service is interrupted or discontinued without 

cause, for twenty-four (24) or more consecutive hours, the Grantee shall, upon request by 

Subscriber, credit such Subscriber pro rata for such interruption.  For this purpose, every 

month will be assumed to have thirty (30) days. 

180

http://www.charter.com/browse/content/rate-card-info
http://www.charter.com/browse/tv-service/tv#Channel-Lineup
http://www.charter.com/browse/tv-service/tv#Channel-Lineup


 

 

16 
 

6. Late Fees.  Grantee shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws with respect to 

any assessment, charge, cost, fee or sum, however characterized, that the Grantee 

imposes upon a Subscriber for late payment of a bill.  The City reserves the right to 

enforce Grantee’s compliance with all Applicable Laws to the maximum extent legally 

permissible. 

SECTION 6. 

OPERATION AND ADMINISTRATION PROVISIONS 

 

1. Administration of Franchise.  The Mayor or other designee shall have continuing 

regulatory jurisdiction and supervision over the System and the Grantee’s operation 

under the Franchise; provided, however, that the City Council shall retain the sole 

authority to take enforcement action pursuant to this Franchise.  

2. Franchise Fee. 

a. During the term of the Franchise, Grantee shall pay quarterly to City a Franchise 

Fee in an amount equal to five percent (5%) of its quarterly Gross Revenues,  

b. Any payments due under this provision shall be payable quarterly.  The payment 

shall be made within forty-five (45) days of the end of each of Grantee’s fiscal 

quarters together with a report showing the basis for the computation in form and 

substance substantially the same as Exhibit A attached hereto.  In the event that a 

Franchise Fee payment or other sum due is not received by the City on or before 

the date due, or is underpaid, Grantee shall pay in addition to the payment, or sum 

due, interest from the due date at the state legal interest rate of 6% annually 

(Alabama Code § 8.8.1). 

c. All amounts paid shall be subject to audit and recomputation by City and 

acceptance of any payment shall not be construed as an accord that the amount 

paid is in fact the correct amount.  In the event the City should conduct a review 

of Grantee’s books and records pursuant to Section 6.6 of this Franchise and such 

review indicates a Franchise Fee underpayment of seven percent (7%) or more 

during the entire period reviewed, the Grantee shall, subject to Applicable Law, 

assume all reasonable documented costs of such audit, and pay same upon 

demand by the City. 

3. Discounted Rates.  For the purposes of this section, in the case of a Cable Service that 

may be bundled or integrated functionally with other services, capabilities, or 

applications, the Franchise Fee shall be applied only to the gross revenue, as defined in 

Section 1.2.n., attributable to Cable Service. Where Grantee bundles, integrates, ties, or 

combines Cable Services with non-video services creating a bundled package, so that 

subscribers pay a single fee for more than one class of service or receive a discount on 

Cable Services, gross revenues shall be determined based on an equal allocation of the 

package discount, that is, the total price of the individual classes of service at advertised 

rates compared to the package price, among all classes of service comprising the 

package. The fact that the Grantee offers a bundled package shall not be deemed a 

181



 

 

17 
 

promotional activity. If the Grantee does not offer any component of the bundled package 

separately, the Grantee shall declare a stated retail value for each component based on 

reasonable comparable prices for the product or service for the purpose of determining 

Franchise Fees based on the package discount described above.  For the purposes of 

determining gross revenue for bundled or integrated services, Grantee shall use the same 

method of determining revenues under generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

4. Access to Records.  The City shall have the right to inspect, upon reasonable notice and 

during Normal Business Hours, or require Grantee to provide within a reasonable time 

copies of any records maintained by Grantee which relate to System operations including 

specifically Grantee’s accounting and financial records. The Grantee shall not be required 

to maintain any books and records for Franchise compliance purposes longer than 

required by applicable state statute of limitations, as may be amended form time to time, 

except for service complaints which shall be kept for one (1) year. City acknowledges 

that some of the records which may be provided by Grantee may be classified as 

confidential and therefore may subject Grantee to competitive disadvantage if made 

public. City shall therefore maintain the confidentiality of any and all records provided to 

it by Grantee which are not required to be made public pursuant to Applicable Laws. 

Grantee shall produce such books and records for City’s inspection at any mutually 

agreed upon location within the City.    

5. Reports to be Filed with City. 

a. Grantee shall file with the City, at the time of payment of the Franchise Fee, a 

 report of all Gross Revenues in form and substance as Exhibit A attached hereto. 

b. City and Grantee shall mutually agree, at the times and in the form prescribed, 

 such other reasonable reports with respect to Grantee’s operations pursuant to this 

 Franchise. 

c. Upon reasonable notice by City, Grantee shall deliver its System maps and plats 

to City’s office located at 1400 9th St NE, Leeds, AL 35094 or at a mutually 

agreed upon location, for viewing, however, for confidential and proprietary 

reasons, Grantee shall not be required to provide copies of its maps and plats to 

City. 

SECTION 7. 

GENERAL FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

 

1. Liability Insurance.  

a. Grantee shall obtain with its acceptance of this Franchise, and at all times 

thereafter maintain in full force and effect at its sole expense, an occurrence-based 

comprehensive general liability insurance policy, including contractual liability 

coverage with standard insurance exclusions, in protection of City, its officers, 

elected officials, boards, commissions, agents and employees.  The policy or 

policies shall name as additional insured the City, its officers, elected officials, 

182



 

 

18 
 

boards, commissions, agents and employees.  The Commercial General Liability 

shall be $2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, death or property damage 

and $3,000,000 aggregate. The policy or policies of insurance shall be maintained 

by Grantee in full force and effect during the entire term of the Franchise and 

shall be issued by company licensed to do business in the State of Alabama with a 

rating by A.M. Best & Co. of not less than “A” upon the Effective Date of this 

Franchise or at the time a sale or transfer of ownership is approved by City. 

Grantee shall furnish City with current certificates of insurance evidencing such 

coverage upon request.  Cancellation notice will be provided for any reason other 

than non-payment of premium and requires the City provide Grantee a valid 

contact name and e-mail address (with any changes to the contact name or e-mail 

address being the responsibility of the City).   

2. Indemnification   

a. Grantee shall indemnify, defend and hold City, its officers, boards, commissions, 

agents and employees (collectively the “Indemnified Parties”) harmless from and 

against any and all lawsuits, claims, causes or action, actions, liabilities, demands, 

damages, judgments, settlements, disability, losses, expenses (including attorney’s 

fees and disbursements of counsel) and costs of any nature that any of the 

Indemnified Parties may at any time suffer, sustain or incur arising out of, based 

upon or in any way connected with the Grantee’s negligent operations, the 

exercise of the Franchise, the breach of Grantee of its obligations under this 

Franchise and/or the negligent activities of Grantee, it subcontractors, employees 

and agents hereunder.  Grantee shall be solely responsible for and shall 

indemnify, defend and hold the Indemnified Parties harmless from and against 

any and all matters relative to payment of Grantee’s employees, including 

compliance with Social Security and withholdings. Grantee shall not be required 

to indemnify City for negligence or misconduct on the part of City or its officials, 

boards, commissions, agents, or employees. 

b. The indemnification obligations of Grantee set forth in this Franchise are not 

limited in any way by the amount or type of damages or compensation payable by 

or for Grantee under Workers’ Compensation, disability or other employee 

benefit acts, acceptance of insurance certificates required under this Franchise or 

the terms, applicability or limitations of any insurance held by Grantee. 

c. City does not, and shall not, waive any rights against Grantee which it may have 

by reason of the indemnification provided for in this Franchise, because of the 

acceptance by City, or the deposit with City by Grantee, of any of the certificates 

of insurance described in this Franchise. 

d. The indemnification of City by Grantee provided for in this Franchise shall apply 

regardless of whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to 

be applicable to any such damages or claims for damages. 

183



 

 

19 
 

e. In order for City to assert its rights to be indemnified, defended, and held 

harmless, City must, with respect to each claim: 

i. Promptly notify Grantee within ten (10) business days in writing of any 

claim or legal proceeding which gives rise to such right; 

ii. Afford Grantee the opportunity to participate in and fully control any 

compromise, settlement or other resolution or disposition of any claim or 

proceeding; and 

iii. Fully cooperate with reasonable requests of Grantee, at Grantee's expense, 

in its participation in, and control, compromise, settlement or resolution or 

other disposition of such claim or proceeding subject to subparagraph (ii) 

above. 

SECTION 8. 

SALE, ABANDONMENT, TRANSFER AND REVOCATION OF FRANCHISE 

 

1. City’s Right to Revoke. 

In addition to all other rights which City has pursuant to law or equity, City reserves the 

right to commence proceedings to revoke, terminate or cancel this Franchise, and all 

rights and privileges pertaining thereto, if it is determined by City that after notice and an 

opportunity to cure as reordered herein; 

i. Grantee has repeatedly and substantially violated material provisions(s) of 

this Franchise and has not put forth a reasonable proposal to cure such 

violations; or 

ii. Grantee has intentionally and materially evaded any of the provisions of 

the Franchise; or 

iii. Grantee has practiced a material fraud or a material deceit upon City. 

2. Procedures for Revocation. 

a. City shall provide Grantee with written notice of a cause for revocation and the 

intent to revoke and shall allow Grantee thirty (30) days subsequent to receipt of 

the notice in which to correct the violation or to provide adequate assurance of 

performance in compliance with the Franchise. In the notice required therein, City 

shall provide Grantee with the basis of the revocation. 

b. Should City determine to proceed with a revocation proceeding, Grantee shall be 

provided the right to a public hearing affording due process before the City 

Council prior to the effective date of revocation.  The due process to be afforded 

Grantee shall include the Grantee’s right to present any written or verbal 

testimony or other relevant evidence to the City Council for consideration.  Such 

information presented by Grantee shall be considered part of the record of the 

184



 

 

20 
 

proceeding. City shall provide Grantee with written notice of its decision together 

with written findings of fact supplementing said decision. 

c. Only after the public hearing and upon written notice of the determination by City 

to revoke the Franchise may Grantee appeal said decision with an appropriate 

state or federal court or agency.  Nothing in this Franchise, including the 

enforcement provisions set forth in this Section 8, shall prevent Grantee from 

filing at any time a legal action in any permissible court or tribunal seeking a 

declaration or enforcement of Grantee’s rights or obligations under the Franchise. 

d. During the appeal period or pendency of any legal action, the Franchise shall 

remain in full force and effect unless the term thereof sooner expires and Grantee 

is not pursuing renewal under Applicable Law or unless continuation of the 

Franchise would endanger the health, safety and welfare of any Person or the 

public. 

3. Removal After Abandonment, Termination or Forfeiture. In the event of termination or 

forfeiture of the Franchise or abandonment of the System, City shall have the right to 

require Grantee to remove all or any portion of the System from all Rights-of-Way and 

public property within City. 

4.  Franchise Transfer.  The Franchise granted hereunder shall not be assigned, other than to 

an entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with the Grantee, without 

the prior written consent of the Grantor, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or 

delayed. No such consent shall be required, however, for a transfer in trust, by mortgage, 

by other hypothecation, or by assignment of any rights, title, or interest of the Grantee in 

the Franchise or Cable System to secure indebtedness.  Within thirty (30) days of 

receiving a request for transfer, the Grantor shall notify the Grantee in writing of any 

additional information it reasonably requires to determine the legal, financial and 

technical qualifications of the transferee.  If the Grantor has not taken action on the 

Grantee’s request for transfer within one hundred twenty (120) days after receiving such 

request, consent by the Grantor shall be deemed given. 

SECTION 9. 

PROTECTION OF INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS 

 

1. Discriminatory Practices Prohibited.  Grantee shall not deny Service, deny access, or 

otherwise discriminate against Subscribers or general citizens on the basis of race, color, 

religion, national origin, sex, age, status as to public assistance, affectional preference, or 

disability.  Grantee shall comply at all times with all other Applicable Laws, and all 

executive and administrative orders relating to nondiscrimination. 

2. Subscriber Privacy.  Grantee shall at all times comply with all applicable provisions of 47 

U.S.C. 551 governing subscriber privacy.  Grantor reserves any and all rights it may have 

now or in the future to enforce compliance with all applicable state and federal laws and 

regulations governing subscriber privacy.  

185



 

 

21 
 

SECTION 10. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

1. Franchise Renewal.  Any renewal of this Franchise shall be performed in accordance with 

Applicable Laws.    

2. Work Performed by Others.  All applicable obligations of this Franchise shall apply to 

any subcontractor or others performing any work or services pursuant to the provisions of 

this Franchise. Grantee shall provide notice to City of the name(s) and address(es) of any 

entity, other than Grantee, which performs substantial services pursuant to this Franchise. 

3. Amendment of Franchise Ordinance.  Grantee and City may agree, from time to time, to 

amend this Franchise.  Such written amendments may be made at any time if City and 

Grantee agree that such an amendment will be in the public interest or if such an 

amendment is required due to changes in federal, state or local laws. 

4. Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. 

a. If any federal or state law or regulation shall require or permit City or Grantee to 

perform any service or act or shall prohibit City or Grantee from performing any 

service or act which may be in conflict with the terms of this Franchise, then as 

soon as possible following knowledge thereof, either party shall notify the other 

of the point in conflict believed to exist between such law or regulation.   

b. If any term, condition or provision of this Franchise or the application thereof to 

 any Person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be held to be invalid or 

 unenforceable, the remainder hereof and the application of such term, condition or 

 provision to Persons or circumstances other than those as to whom it shall be held 

 invalid or unenforceable shall not be affected thereby, and this Franchise and all 

 the terms, provisions and conditions hereof shall, in all other respects, continue to 

 be effective and complied with provided the loss of the invalid or unenforceable 

 clause does not substantially alter the agreement between the parties.  In the event 

 such law, rule or regulation is subsequently repealed, rescinded, amended or 

 otherwise changed so that the provision which had been held invalid or modified 

 is no longer in conflict with the law, rules and regulations then in effect, said 

 provision shall thereupon return to full force and effect and shall thereafter be 

 binding on Grantee and City. 

5. Non-enforcement by City.  Grantee shall not be relieved of its obligations to comply with 

any of the provisions of this Franchise by reason of any failure or delay of City to enforce 

prompt compliance.  City may only waive its rights hereunder by expressly so stating in 

writing.  Any such written waiver by City of a breach or violation of any provision of this 

Franchise shall not operate as or be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach or 

violation. 

6. Rights Cumulative.   The rights and remedies reserved to the City and Grantee by this 

Franchise are cumulative and shall be in addition to and not in derogation of any other 

186



 

 

22 
 

legal or equitable rights or remedies which the City and Grantee may have with respect to 

the subject matter of this Franchise, and a waiver thereof at any time shall have no effect 

on the enforcement of such rights or remedies at a future time. 

7. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be in default under this Agreement if any failure or 

delay in performance is caused by acts of God; fire; flood; earthquake; lightning; 

unusually severe weather; material or facility shortages or unavailability not resulting 

from such party's failure to timely place orders therefore; war or civil disorder; or any 

other cause beyond the reasonable control of either party hereto.  The excused party shall 

use reasonable efforts under the circumstances to avoid or remove such causes of non-

performance and shall proceed to perform with reasonable dispatch whenever such 

causes are removed or ceased. Notification shall be given by the excused party to the 

other party, of the cause and of the estimated duration, when possible. 

          

           SECTION 11. 

PUBLICATION EFFECTIVE DATE; ACCEPTANCE AND EXHIBITS 

 

1. Publication, Effective Date.  This Franchise shall be published in accordance with 

applicable local and state law.  The effective date of this Franchise shall be the date of 

acceptance by Grantee in accordance with the provisions of Section 11.2. 

2. Acceptance. 

 

a. Grantee shall accept this Franchise within thirty (30) days of its enactment by the 

City Council, unless the time for acceptance is extended by City.  Such 

acceptance by the Grantee shall be deemed the grant of this Franchise for all 

purposes. 

b. Upon acceptance of this Franchise, Grantee and City shall be bound by all the 

terms and conditions contained herein. 

c. Grantee shall accept this Franchise in the following manner: 

i. This Franchise will be properly executed and acknowledged by Grantee 

and delivered to City. 

ii. With its acceptance, Grantee shall also deliver any insurance certificates 

as required herein that have not previously been delivered. 

 

Passed and adopted by the City Council this 14th day of December 2020. 

ATTEST:  LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

By:  By:        

                                                                                      

Its:            Its:      ______ 

 

187



 

 

23 
 

ACCEPTED:  This Franchise is accepted, and we agree to be bound by its terms and conditions. 

 

       

       SPECTRUM SOUTHEAST, LLC 

  

 

Date:    , 2020   By: Charter Communications, Inc., Its Manager 

 

     By:         

                                                                                

  Print Name:   

  

 Its:       Vice President, Government Affairs   

 

SWORN TO BEFORE ME this 

__ day of ___________, 2020. 

  

NOTARY PUBLIC 

 

188



 

B-1 

EXHIBIT A 

FRANCHISE FEE PAYMENT WORKSHEET 

 

TRADE SECRET – CONFIDENTIAL 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

189



 

 

 B-2 

EXHIBIT B 

GRANTEE COMPLIMENTARY LOCATIONS TO CITY LOCATIONS 

 

One (1) complimentary outlet of Basic Service will be provided, on a voluntary basis, to each of 

the locations listed below. If any of the locations below require an installation, Grantee will 

install Basic Service at the lowest actual cost of Grantee’s time and material. Each location listed 

below may add additional outlets at their own expense, as long as installation meets Grantee’s 

standards and approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

 

City Hall 1400 9th St., Leeds, AL 35094 

Development Services 1404 9th St. Leeds, AL 35094 

Municipal Annex 1410 9th St. Leeds, AL 35094 

City Hall Annex 1412 9th St. Leeds, AL 35094 

Police Department 1040 Park Drive, Leeds, AL 35094 

  

  

  

 

 

190



File Attachments for Item:

16. Ordinance 2020-12-02 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 

Consider amending Ordinance 2020-06-02 to update the principal payments for USDA project

191



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-12-02 

 

A SUPPLEMENTAL ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2020-06-02 

ADOPTED JUNE 29, 2020, AUTHORIZING THE 

GENERAL OBLIGATION WARRANT, SERIES 2020-C 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the governing body of the City of Leeds, Alabama (the “City”), as follows:  

 

Section 1. Findings.  The governing body of the City makes the following findings, 

representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein contained:   

 (a) The City has heretofore authorized the issuance of its General Obligation Warrant, Series 

2020-C (the “Series 2020-C Warrant”), in an aggregate principal amount up to $2,700,000, under the 

terms and conditions of an Ordinance No. 2020-06-02 adopted by the governing body of the City at is 

regular meeting held on June 29, 2020 (the “Original Ordinance”). 

(b) Since the date of the Original Ordinance and issuance of the Series 2020-C Warrant the 

holder of the Series 2020-C Warrant, United Bank, and City have mutually agreed to end the interest only 

payment period earlier. 

 (c) It is necessary and advisable that the Original Ordinance be supplemented and amended, 

as hereinafter set forth, and is further necessary and advisable that the Series 2020-C Warrant be amended 

in accordance with the terms of this Ordinance. 

Section 2.  Amendment of Section 2.  Section 2 of the Original Ordinance is hereby 

amended by deleting Section 2 and replacing it with the following: 

 

Section 2. Authorization of the Warrant.  Pursuant to the provisions of 

the constitution and laws of the State of Alabama, including particularly Section 11-47-2, 

Code of Alabama 1975, as amended, and to evidence a USDA loan from United Bank for 

paving and resurfacing of various City streets and related infrastructure, there is hereby 

authorized to be issued by the City its General Obligation Warrant, Series 2020-C, in the 

principal amount of $2,700,000.00.  The Warrant shall be dated the date of its issuance, 

shall be issued in fully registered form, shall be payable in monthly installments over a 

two hundred and fifty-two (252) month period commencing on October 30, 2020 in such 

principal and interest amounts as reflected in the amortization schedule attached hereto as 

Exhibit A, and shall bear interest at the per annum rate of three and two hundred 

seventy-five thousandths percent (3.275%).  

 

Section 3. Approval of Amended Warrant.  The City does hereby approve a new first 

page and Exhibit A to the Series 2020-C Warrant, attached hereto, and directs United Bank to substitute 

the attached first page and Exhibit A to the Series 2020-C Warrant. 

Section 4. Confirmation of Ordinance 2020-06-02.  All terms, covenants and conditions 

of the Original Ordinance, as supplemented by this ordinance, are hereby in all things confirmed, and they 

shall remain in full force and effect.   

 

 

 

 

192



 

 2 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 14th day of December 2020. 

 

 

[S  E  A  L] 

   

David Miller,  

MAYOR OF THE CITY OF LEEDS 
ATTESTED: 

      

 Its City Clerk 

 

 

193



1 

 

THIS WARRANT HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED (i) UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 

1933, AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON THE EXEMPTIONS PROVIDED BY SAID ACT, 

OR (ii) UNDER ANY STATE SECURITIES LAW, IN RELIANCE UPON APPLICABLE 

EXEMPTIONS, AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED WITHOUT REGISTRATION EXCEPT 

PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM. 

$2,700,000.00 June 30, 2020 

 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

          

STATE OF ALABAMA 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

GENERAL OBLIGATION WARRANT 

SERIES 2020-C 

(USDA LOAN) 

 

 

 The CITY OF LEEDS, a municipal corporation in the State of Alabama (herein called the 

“City”), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself indebted to and orders and directs the City 

Treasurer of the City to pay to UNITED BANK, or registered assigns, upon presentation and 

surrender hereof, the principal sum of  

 

TWO MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS 

 

(or such lesser portion thereof then unpaid) on the 30th day of June 2041 (unless the principal of 

this warrant shall have been duly called for previous redemption and payment duly provided for).  

The principal of and interest on this warrant shall be payable in lawful money of the United States 

of America in monthly installments over a two hundred fifty-two (252) month period commencing 

on October 30, 2020 in such principal and interest amounts as reflected in the amortization 

schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A.  This warrant shall bear interest from its date of issuance 

until maturity unless sooner paid at the rate of three and two hundred seventy-five thousandths 

percent (3.275%) per annum. 

 

 This warrant is authorized to be issued pursuant to the applicable provisions of the 

constitution and laws of the State of Alabama, including particularly Section 11-47-2 of the Code 

of Alabama 1975, as amended, as well as an ordinance duly adopted by the governing body of the 

City on June 29, 2020 (herein called the “Ordinance”), for purposes for which the City is 

authorized by law to borrow money and to issue warrants.  All capitalized terms not otherwise 

defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to such terms in the Ordinance. 

 

 The indebtedness evidenced and ordered paid by this warrant is a general obligation of the 

City for the payment of the principal of and interest on which the full faith and credit of the City 

have been irrevocably pledged.  

 

194



2 

 

 The City reserves the privilege of prepaying all or any part of the principal of this warrant 

at any time and from time to time, without premium or penalty, and without notice. 

 

 The principal of and interest on this warrant will be paid only to the named payee hereof 

or its registered assigns at the address of the said payee as shown on the books of the City 

maintained for that purpose by its undersigned registrar. 

 

 It is hereby certified that all conditions, actions and things required by the constitution and 

laws of Alabama to exist, be performed or happen precedent to or in the issuance of this warrant 

do exist, have been performed and have happened in due and legal form. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this warrant to be executed in its name and 

behalf by its Mayor, who has caused its official seal to be hereunto affixed, has caused this warrant 

to be attested by its City Clerk, both of said officers being hereunto duly authorized, and has caused 

this warrant to be dated June 30, 2020. 

 

 

   CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

 

 By    

   Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

   

 City Clerk 

 

 

  

195



3 

 

 

 This warrant was registered in the name of the above-registered owner this 30th day of June 

2020. 

 

 

 

 By    

   Registrar 

 

 For value received ________________________________ hereby sell(s), assign(s) and 

transfer(s) unto __________________________________ the within warrant and hereby 

irrevocably constitute(s) and appoint(s) ____________________, attorney, with full power of 

substitution in the premises, to transfer this warrant on the books of the City of Leeds, Alabama. 

 

 Dated this _____ day of _________________, _____. 

 

 

    

NOTE:  The signature on this assignment must 

correspond with the name of the registered owner as 

it appears on the face of the within warrant in every 

particular, without alteration, enlargement or change 

whatsoever 

 

196



 

 

 

RECEIPT FOR AMENDED WARRANT 

 

 

 United Bank does hereby acknowledge receipt on this date of the amended 

$2,700,000 principal amount General Obligation Warrant, Series 2020-C, of the City of 

Leeds, Alabama, as amended by replacing the original first page and Exhibit A with first 

page and Exhibit A attached hereto all of which have been delivered to the undersigned 

as the purchasers thereof. 

 

 Dated this ___ day of ___________, 2020. 

 

 

     UNITED BANK 

 

 

 

     By _________________________________ 

      Its duly authorized representative 

197



File Attachments for Item:

17. Ordinance 2020-12-03 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 

Consider De-annexation Policy

198



CITY OF LEEDS 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-12-03 

 

ORDINANCE REGARDING DE-ANNEXATION PETITIONS 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Leeds does not have written policy relating to the de-annexation 

of property from the City and has historically denied any such request; and 

 

WHEREAS, reducing the size of the City generally works a disservice to the City as a 

whole due to loss of citizens, loss of ad valorem revenue, and loss of territory from the boundary 

of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is prudent for the City to express its general position, absent extenuating 

circumstances, in regard to the de-annexation of property from the municipality. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEEDS, 

ALABAMA, that the City Code of Ordinances be amended as follows: 

 

1. It is the policy of the city, absent some extenuating circumstance which creates a unique 

and extreme hardship for the subject citizen/property owner, the City will not allow 

petitions to de-annex property to be placed on its City Council meeting agendas. 

2. Financial hardship or a dislike for the municipal government policies or administration 

shall not be considered as unique or extreme hardships for purposes of allowing a 

petition to de-annex to be placed on the agenda. 

3. Upon the allegation of a hardship, the Mayor shall make a determination as to whether 

the matter could potentially be unique or extreme in nature. In the event of such a 

finding, such petition may be placed on a Council agenda by the Mayor for further 

consideration. 

4. Upon a finding of unique or extreme hardship as well as a finding of a real public 

benefit for the City, the City Council, by a unanimous vote of all Council members 

present may allow a property owner to de-annex their property from the municipality 

upon the petitioner’s payment of all costs associated with the matter including the 

reestablishment of the City boundary. 

5. The city council hereby reaffirms its intentions to maintain and to expand the existing 

corporate limits of the city and that such intentions provide a real public benefit to the 

City and is citizenry.  

6. All ordinances, resolutions and orders or parts thereof in conflict with this resolution 

are to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

7. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its adoption and publication as 

required by law. 

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of December 2020. 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA: 

 

___________________________________   __________________________         

DAVID MILLER, MAYOR               DATE 

 

       AYES:   ______ 

ATTEST:      NAYS:   ______ 

       ABSENT FROM VOTING: ______ 

___________________________________  ABSTAIN:   ______ 

CITY CLERK     

 

In my capacity as City Clerk of the City of Leeds, I hereby certify that the above 

Ordinance was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held 

on the 14th day of December 2020. 

 

.    ______ 

Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

199



File Attachments for Item:

18. Resolution 2020-12-01 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 

Consider Approval of Alcohol License to Mountainview Package Store at 8525 Whitfield Avenue

200



Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF LEEDS 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2020-12-01 

RESOLUTION APPROVING OF ALCOHOL LICENSE 

WHEREAS, the City of Leeds has been notified that applicant, Virginia Abu Al Maati, 

trade name Mountainview Package Store,, has applied with the State of Alabama Alcoholic 

Beverage Control Board (“ABC Board”) an Application for an Alcohol License Type 011 – 

Lounge Retail Liquor (Class II Package) located at 8525 Whitfield Avenue; Suite 101; Leeds, AL. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds that the 

City Clerk is directed to inform the ABC Board that the City of Leeds has no objection to the 

Alcohol License for the sale of Liquor (011 – Package).  

  

.  
  AYES:                                       ____________ 

      

 

  NAYS:                                       ____________ 

     

     

  ABSENT FROM VOTING:   ____________  

 

     

  ABSTAIN:                                ____________ 

    

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of December 2020 

 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

 

___________________________                                                _______________________ 

David Miller, MAYOR                                                                           DATE 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

 

I, Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk of the City of Leeds, hereby certify that the above Resolution was 

duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 14th day of 

December 2020 

 

  ___________________________ 

                  City Clerk 

201



File Attachments for Item:

19. Resolution 2020-12-02 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 

Consider Business License Tax Refund Request

202



Page 1 of 1 

 

CITY OF LEEDS 

  RESOLUTION NO.: 2020-12-02 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A TAX REFUND WITH A CORPORATE TAXPAYER WITHIN THE 

CITY IN REGARDS TO THE OVERPAYMENT OF CERTAIN TAXES.   

 

WHEREAS, Taxpayer (City Account number of 63-0196990) made timely payment to the City of Leeds of the 

required Sales, Use & Business License Tax pursuant to, without limitation, Chapters 12 and 44 of the City Code of 

Ordinances (the "Tax"); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Taxpayer has requested that certain tax payment be refunded due to an alleged overpayment of 

taxes due to a mistaken application of delivery tax when in fact the taxpayer’s deliveries are defined by §11-51-194 

Code of Alabama 1975 as exempt and not subject to sales taxes; and 

 

WHEREAS,  City Ordinance 2013-05-17 requires that waivers and agreements of a certain amount be submitted 

to the City Council for approval instead of an administrative approval; and 

 

WHEREAS, after review of the facts and the materials so submitted by the taxpayer, it has been determined that the 

taxes paid were in fact mistakenly paid; and  

 

WHEREEAS, pursuant to §11-51-72 Code of Alabama 1975, when such a determination has been made that taxes 

have been erroneously paid to the City and the taxpayer has in fact submitted a request for a refund, then the City 

Council is authorized to make such refund. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City of Leeds that, in consideration of the 

foregoing, as follows: 

1. After due examination into the facts and evidence offered by the petitioner in support of the allegations of 

overpayment of certain sales taxes, the petition for sales tax refund as submitted by Taxpayer # 63-

0196990) is hereby determined to be proper and full proof of the same. 

2. The City Clerk/treasurer is hereby directed to provide the requested refund in the amount of Six Thousand 

Nine Hundred Forty-three dollars & fifty-one cents (i.e. $6,943.51) to the subject taxpayer. 

3. That the Mayor, City staff and City attorneys shall have the full authority to do those things, to perform 

those functions, and to sign necessary documentation in order to carry out the actions so authorized herein. 

 

Adopted and approved this the 14th day of December 2020 

        AYES:       

  NAYS:       

  ABSENT FROM VOTING:    

  ABSTAIN:      

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

        

David Miller, MAYOR     DATE 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  

CITY CLERK     

 

As the City Clerk of the City of Leeds, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 14th day of December 2020. 

___________________________________ 

Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

203



File Attachments for Item:

20. Resolution 2020-12-03 (Carried over from the canceled meeting - December 07, 2020): 

Consider declaring certain property surplus and authorizing its sale

204



Page 1 of 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2020-12-03 

 

RESOLUTION IN DESIGNATING CERTAIN PROPERTY AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING 

SALE OF SAME – FORD 550 – FIRE DEPT  

 

WHEREAS, the City Fire Department is in possession of a cert Ford 550 Truck which is due to be 

designated as surplus, excess, and sold; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order for the City to sale the vehicle, the property must be designated as surplus; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City staff recommends that the subject vehicle be designated as surplus and that 

the Council authorize its sale. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds that: 

1. The Recitals above are true, correct and included herein as if fully set forth. 

2. The subject Ford 550 box truck (VIN # 1FDAF56R48ED18350) is hereby designated to be surplus, 

excess and due to be sold by any lawful means.  

3. The Mayor and staff shall have the full authority to do those things, perform those functions, make 

such decisions, and to sign necessary documentation in order to carry out and fully complete the 

actions so authorized herein and within the subject Agreement. 

 

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of December 2020. 

 

 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA: 

 

 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 

DAVID MILLER, MAYOR    DATE 

 

       AYES:     ______ 

ATTEST:      NAYS:     ______ 

       ABSENT FROM VOTING:  ______ 

___________________________________  ABSTAIN:    ______ 

TOUSHI ARBITELLE, CITY CLERK     

 

 

In my capacity of City Clerk of the City of Leeds, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was 

duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 14th day of December 

2020. 

 

___________________________________ 

Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

205



File Attachments for Item:

21. Resolution 2020-12-04: Consider Approval of Alcohol License to Buc-ee's #43 at 6900 Buc-

ee's Boulevard

206



Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF LEEDS 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2020-12-04 

RESOLUTION APPROVING OF ALCOHOL LICENSE 

WHEREAS, the City of Leeds has been notified that applicant, Buc-ee's Alabama II, LLC, 

trade name Buc-ee's #43, has applied with the State of Alabama Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 

(“ABC Board”) an Application for an Alcohol License Type 050 – Retail Beer (Off Premises 

Only) and Type 070 – Retail Table Wine (Off Premises Only) located at 6900 Buc-ee's Boulevard; 

Leeds, AL. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds that the 

City Clerk is directed to inform the ABC Board that the City of Leeds has no objection to the 

Alcohol License for the sale of Retail Beer (Off Premises Only) and Retail Table Wine (Off 

Premises Only). 

  

.  
  AYES:                                       ____________ 

      

 

  NAYS:                                       ____________ 

     

     

  ABSENT FROM VOTING:   ____________ 

  

     

  ABSTAIN:                                ____________ 

    

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of December 2020 

 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

 

___________________________                                                _______________________ 

David Miller, MAYOR                                                                              

 DATE 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

 

I, Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk of the City of Leeds, hereby certify that the above Resolution was 

duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 14th day of 

December 2020 

 

  ___________________________ 

                  City Clerk 

207



File Attachments for Item:

22. Resolution 2020-12-05: Consider City Employee Charity Drive Authorization

208



CITY OF LEEDS  

 

RESOLUTION 2020-12-05 

 

APPROVAL AND RATIFICATION OF VARIOUS EFFORTS AND ACTIVITIES OF CITY 

DEPARTMENTS AND EMPLOYEES TO COLLECT AND TO DISBURSE HOLIDAY GIFTS AND 

ASSISTANCE TO COMMUNITY CHILDREN AND CITIZENS.  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Leeds departmental directors and staff, in their role as City employees, often voluntarily 

provide and solicit donations of money and gifts during the holidays for deserving families and children within the 

community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the benevolence of these individuals does not involve the distribution or expenditure of normal City 

funds; however, donations are often received by City departments in their official capacity from businesses and 

individuals for the purpose of providing charity to various citizens and children; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to avoid the appearance of the impropriety of public funds being provided in violation 

of State ethical guidelines and wishes to provide formal recognition and approval of the subject charitable activities 

of Departments and staff. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF LEEDS CITY COUNCIL as follows: 

 

1. The Recitals set forth above are hereby found and declared to be true and correct. 

2. It is hereby found and declared that the annual charitable activities and programs of the various City 

Departments (“City Employee Charity Drive”), which provides donated funds and gifts to deserving 

families and children in the community, serves a valid and sufficient public benefit to the City of 

Leeds and its citizens, and all efforts related thereto to date are hereby ratified and approved. 

3. The City Employee Charity Drive is hereby determined to be an ongoing City Council sanctioned 

annual event. Voluntary departmental participation is subject only to prior written Department-Head 

approval provided to the City Clerk. Each Department Head shall provide a single report in January 

to the City Council detailing the benefits provided by their efforts, and any monetary donations shall 

be recorded and kept separately from budgeted City funds. 

4. The Mayor and staff are hereby authorized and empowered to take any and all such further actions 

necessary, required, or convenient to effectuate the intent of this Resolution, to adequately support 

the charitable efforts, and any such actions taken by them are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 14th day of December 2020. 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA: 

  

___________________________________   __________________________          

DAVID MILLER, MAYOR               DATE 

  

         AYES:   ______ 

ATTEST:        NAYS:   ______ 

       ABSENT FROM VOTING:  ______ 

___________________________________             ABSTAIN:   ______  

CITY CLERK     

  

In my capacity as City Clerk of the City of Leeds, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 14th day of December 2020. 

  

________________________________ 

Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

209



File Attachments for Item:

23. Resolution 2020-12-06: Consider Conveyance of Property to Jefferson County Per 1998 

Unification Agreement

210



Page 1 of 3 
 

CITY OF LEEDS 

 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2020-12-06 

 

PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION TO CONVEY REAL PROPERTY TO JEFFERSON COUNTY PER 

THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE  1998 UNIFICATION AGREEMENT. 

WHEREAS, the City is a party to that certain Unification Agreement dated August 20, 1998 with Jefferson County 

which was authorized by Resolution 1998-07-02 and subject to the requirements as set forth within City of Leeds, et 

al. v. Jefferson County, Alabama, CV 86-505-366; and 

WHEREAS, said the Agreement requires that the City of Leeds convey property to Jefferson County which is 

considered to be “sever facilities”, and that requirement is considered by the Agreement to “. . . survive closing and 

be continuous until fulfilled. . .”; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to provide authority for the Mayor, the City Attorneys, City staff, and the Mayor to 

certain property to Jefferson County, in compliance with the Unification Agreement, as has been identified by recent 

survey as attached. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEEDS, AL as follows: 

1. The Recitals above are true and correct and included herein this resolution as if fully set forth. 

2. The conveyance of that certain property, as described and set forth in the survey Exhibits A and B as attached 

hereto (dated June 5, 2020), to Jefferson County in compliance with the 1998 Unification Agreement is 

hereby approved. 

3. This Resolution shall take effect and be enforced by the City Council of the City of Leeds upon approval and 

signature of the Mayor.  

4. The Mayor, City staff, and City Attorneys are hereby authorized to take all necessary actions and to execute 

the necessary documentation on behalf of the City in order to complete the actions herein authorized. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

LEEDS, ALABAMA on this 14th day of December 2020. 

       

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 

DAVID MILLER, MAYOR    DATE 

 

ATTEST:      AYES:    ______ 

       NAYS:    ______ 

       ABSENT FROM VOTING: ______ 

___________________________________  ABSTAIN:   ______ 

CITY CLERK     

 

In capacity as City Clerk of the City of Leeds, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted 

by the City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 14th day of December 2020. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

 

 

211



Page 2 of 3 
 

EXHIBIT A

 

212



Page 3 of 3 
 

EXHIBIT B 

 

213



File Attachments for Item:

24. Resolution 2020-12-07: Consider Purchase of Cedar Grove Cemetery Lots

214



Page 1 of 1 
 

CITY OF LEEDS 

 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2020-12-07 

 

PROVIDING FOR THE AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE CERTAIN LOTS AT CEDAR 

GROVE CEMETERY 

WHEREAS, there exist no additional lots available for purchase at the City’s Cedar Grove Cemetery; 

and 

WHEREAS, an opportunity has presented itself for the City to purchase three plots located at the 

Cemetery from individual owners; and 

WHEREAS, although the City does not normally agree to the re-purchase of such property rights, the 

subject purchase will also resolve current claims and confusion as to the internment rights of various plots 

at the Cemetery. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEEDS, AL as follows: 

1. The Recitals above are true and correct and included herein this resolution as if fully set forth. 

2. The purchase of lots # 279, 280, & 281 located at Cedar Grove Cemetery for a purchase price not 

to exceed Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents (See Exhibit A). 

3. This Resolution shall take effect and be enforced by the City Council of the City of Leeds upon 

approval and signature of the Mayor.  

4. The Mayor, City staff and City Attorneys are hereby authorized to take all necessary actions 

regarding the promotion of economic development and to execute the necessary documentation 

on behalf of the City in order to complete the actions herein authorized. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City of Leeds City Council on the 14th day of 

December 2020. 

 

  AYES:       

  NAYS:       

  ABSENT FROM VOTING:    

  ABSTAIN:      

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

        

David Miller, MAYOR     DATE 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  

City Clerk 

 

In my capacity as the City Clerk of the City of Leeds, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 14th day of December 

2020. 

 

  ___________________________________ 

  Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

 

215



THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY 

BRUNSON, BARNETT & SHERRER, P.C. 

8020 PARKWAY, DRIVE 

LEEDS, AL 35094 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

COUNTY OF ST. CLAIR ) 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THEE PRESENTS:  That for an in consideration of 

________________________________________________________________________Dollars and no 

Cents ($_____________.00) to the undersigned grantor, THOMAS TUCKER, in hand paid by CITY OF 

LEEDS, ALABAMA, a municipal corporation, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, the said 

THOMAS TUCKER, does by these presents grant, bargain, sell and convey unto the said CITY OF 

LEEDS, ALABAMA, a municipal corporation, a lot, or parcel of ground in Cedar Grove Cemetery, City 

of Leeds, County of St. Clair, State of Alabama, designated as Third Addition, Lot No. 279, 280, 281, 

Block No. 1, Containing 3 grave lots.  The same thing being described and designated as above, in 

accordance with map on file in the office of said CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA. 

 

IT IS DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD that said land is to be used exclusively for the burial of 

human bodies and is sold and conveyed subject to such supervision, control and regulation by CITY OF 

LEEDS, a municipal corporation, its successors or assigns as are now, or may hereafter be, prescribed in 

the rules and regulations of the CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA, a municipal corporation, or its successors 

or assigns. 

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the above granted property to the said CITY OF LEEDS, 

ALABAMA, a municipal corporation, heirs and assigns, forever; subject, however, to the restrictions and 

limitations above referred to as the control, supervision and regulations as herein set forth. 

 

And THOMAS TUCKER, for himself, his successors and assigns, covenants with the said CITY 

OF LEEDS, ALABAMA, a municipal corporation, heirs and assigns, that it is lawfully seized in fee simple 

of said Lot 279, 280, 281, that they are free from all encumbrances; that they have good right to sell and 

convey the same as aforesaid; and that they will and their successors and assigns shall, warrant and defend 

the title to the same to the said CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA, a municipal corporation, heirs and assigns 

forever, against the lawful claims of all persons; subject, however, to the restrictions herein contained, as 

to the use, supervision, control and regulations as herein set forth. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SANDRA JO TUCKER, as attorney-in-fact for THOMAS TUCKER 

who is thereunto duly authorized, with said authorization being valid and not otherwise revoked, hereunto 

sets her signature this the ______ day of __________________, 2020 

 

   ______________________________________________________ 

SANDRA JO TUCKER, as attorney-in-fact for THOMAS TUCKER 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA  ) 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) 

 

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County in said State, hereby certify that 

SANDRA JO TUCKER, as attorney-in-fact for THOMAS TUCKER whose name is signed to the 

foregoing conveyance, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed 

of the contents of the conveyance, she, as such officer, and with full authority, executed the same 

voluntarily for and as the act of said THOMAS TUCKER. 

 

 Given under my hand, this the ______ day of __________________, 2020 

 

 

      __________________________________________ 

      NOTARY PUBLIC 

      My Commission Expires _____________________ 

216



File Attachments for Item:

25. R20-002476 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7310 PARKWAY DR

217



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82548052&ciDisplay=null 2/5

CITY OF LEEDS
RESOLUTION 20-002476

RESOLUTION IN DETERMINATION OF CERTIAN CONDITIONS TO BE AN ANNOYANCE AND PUBLIC NUISANCE IN
VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 32 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FOR THE CITY OF LEEDS, AL.

WHEREAS, in accordance with, without limitation, Code of Ordinances for the city of Leeds, Alabama Chapter 32, §11-47-
117, and 11-67-60 to 11-67-67 Code of Alabama 1975 (cumulatively referred to as the "Law"), the City Council of the City
of Leeds has the authority to determined that certain conditions upon certain properties in the city of Leeds are offensive,
produce an annoyance, constitute a threat to the general public health, safety and welfare of the City of Leeds, Alabama
and are in fact a public nuisance; and
WHEREAS, employees or agents of the City of Leeds have identified certain conditions to be a nuisance in violation of the
law as existing on certain property at 7310 PARKWAY DR LEEDS, AL 35094, Parcel ID: 2500202001042000 which is
identified in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Property"); and
WHEREAS, in accordance wit the Law, the City Council of the City of Leeds, after considering the report and the
associated notices as presented by staff, may find that the subject conditions identified by the supporting information and
documentation related to the subject Property(ies) are a public nuisance and order the immediate abatement of such
conditions; and
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leeds may hold a public hearing if requested by the property owner to have the
opportunity of being heard and to discuses the conditions as presented; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City of Leeds is to keep an account of the cost of abating or removing the
nuisance on any such property when the owner fails to comply with the provided notices; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City Council of the City of Leed desires to make a determination as to
whether or not a public nuisance actually exists at the subject Property(ies), based on the information as presented, and
potentially order the abatement of any such nuisance(s).
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds follows:

1. All of the Recitals above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein as if fully set forth
2. The conditions identified by the Notice(s) of the Public Nuisance, in relation to the Property(ies) identified on the

report as Attached hereto as Exhibit A including the requisite notices and supporting information as provided to the
Property owner and posted at the Property, and all hereby declared to be a public nuisance in the City of Leeds.

3. The identified public nuisance(s) is relation to the subject Property(ies) shall be abated and/or removed by the City,
if necessary, with costs assessed to the subject Property.

4. City staff is to create a report of the related costs for abating or removing any remaining nuisance(s) from the
Property and to provide such report back to the City Council for approval of the costs related to the same.

5. The provisions of the Resolution are severable. If any part of the Resolution is determined to be invalid,
unenforceable or unconstitutional, such determination shall not affect any other part of this Resolution.

6. The City Budget is amended to fund the deceleration of public Nuisance abatements.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12/14/2020
CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA
___________________________________ ______________________
DAVID MILLER, MAYOR               DATE

ATTEST:
 

AYES _______
NAYS _______

ABSENT FROM
VOTING _______

___________________________________ ABSTAIN _______
Toushi Arbitelle,
CITY CLERK

I, Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk of the City of Leeds, hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted by the City
Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on 12/14/2020

___________________________________
Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk

218



File Attachments for Item:

26. R20-002372 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7114 TRAMWAY CRT

219



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82520461&ciDisplay=null 2/8

CITY OF LEEDS
RESOLUTION 20-002372

RESOLUTION IN DETERMINATION OF CERTIAN CONDITIONS TO BE AN ANNOYANCE AND PUBLIC NUISANCE IN
VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 32 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FOR THE CITY OF LEEDS, AL.

WHEREAS, in accordance with, without limitation, Code of Ordinances for the city of Leeds, Alabama Chapter 32, §11-47-
117, and 11-67-60 to 11-67-67 Code of Alabama 1975 (cumulatively referred to as the "Law"), the City Council of the City
of Leeds has the authority to determined that certain conditions upon certain properties in the city of Leeds are offensive,
produce an annoyance, constitute a threat to the general public health, safety and welfare of the City of Leeds, Alabama
and are in fact a public nuisance; and
WHEREAS, employees or agents of the City of Leeds have identified certain conditions to be a nuisance in violation of the
law as existing on certain property at 7114 TRAMWAY CT LEEDS, AL 35094, Parcel ID: 2500202003018000 which is
identified in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Property"); and
WHEREAS, in accordance wit the Law, the City Council of the City of Leeds, after considering the report and the
associated notices as presented by staff, may find that the subject conditions identified by the supporting information and
documentation related to the subject Property(ies) are a public nuisance and order the immediate abatement of such
conditions; and
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leeds may hold a public hearing if requested by the property owner to have the
opportunity of being heard and to discuses the conditions as presented; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City of Leeds is to keep an account of the cost of abating or removing the
nuisance on any such property when the owner fails to comply with the provided notices; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City Council of the City of Leed desires to make a determination as to
whether or not a public nuisance actually exists at the subject Property(ies), based on the information as presented, and
potentially order the abatement of any such nuisance(s).
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds follows:

1. All of the Recitals above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein as if fully set forth
2. The conditions identified by the Notice(s) of the Public Nuisance, in relation to the Property(ies) identified on the

report as Attached hereto as Exhibit A including the requisite notices and supporting information as provided to the
Property owner and posted at the Property, and all hereby declared to be a public nuisance in the City of Leeds.

3. The identified public nuisance(s) is relation to the subject Property(ies) shall be abated and/or removed by the City,
if necessary, with costs assessed to the subject Property.

4. City staff is to create a report of the related costs for abating or removing any remaining nuisance(s) from the
Property and to provide such report back to the City Council for approval of the costs related to the same.

5. The provisions of the Resolution are severable. If any part of the Resolution is determined to be invalid,
unenforceable or unconstitutional, such determination shall not affect any other part of this Resolution.

6. The City Budget is amended to fund the deceleration of public Nuisance abatements.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12/14/2020
CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA
___________________________________ ______________________
DAVID MILLER, MAYOR               DATE

ATTEST:
 

AYES _______
NAYS _______

ABSENT FROM
VOTING _______

___________________________________ ABSTAIN _______
Toushi Arbitelle,
CITY CLERK

I, Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk of the City of Leeds, hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted by the City
Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on 12/14/2020

___________________________________
Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk

220



File Attachments for Item:

27. R20-002225 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 1332 BEECH ST

221



12/11/2020 Picture

https://www3.citizenserve.com/Admin/WorkOrderDocuments?Action=ListDocuments&WorkOrder_ID=82491374&ciDisplay=null 2/6

CITY OF LEEDS
RESOLUTION 20-002225

RESOLUTION IN DETERMINATION OF CERTIAN CONDITIONS TO BE AN ANNOYANCE AND PUBLIC NUISANCE IN
VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 32 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FOR THE CITY OF LEEDS, AL.

WHEREAS, in accordance with, without limitation, Code of Ordinances for the city of Leeds, Alabama Chapter 32, §11-47-
117, and 11-67-60 to 11-67-67 Code of Alabama 1975 (cumulatively referred to as the "Law"), the City Council of the City
of Leeds has the authority to determined that certain conditions upon certain properties in the city of Leeds are offensive,
produce an annoyance, constitute a threat to the general public health, safety and welfare of the City of Leeds, Alabama
and are in fact a public nuisance; and
WHEREAS, employees or agents of the City of Leeds have identified certain conditions to be a nuisance in violation of the
law as existing on certain property at 1332 BEECH ST LEEDS, AL 35094, Parcel ID: 2500224000005000 which is
identified in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Property"); and
WHEREAS, in accordance wit the Law, the City Council of the City of Leeds, after considering the report and the
associated notices as presented by staff, may find that the subject conditions identified by the supporting information and
documentation related to the subject Property(ies) are a public nuisance and order the immediate abatement of such
conditions; and
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Leeds may hold a public hearing if requested by the property owner to have the
opportunity of being heard and to discuses the conditions as presented; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City of Leeds is to keep an account of the cost of abating or removing the
nuisance on any such property when the owner fails to comply with the provided notices; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Law, the City Council of the City of Leed desires to make a determination as to
whether or not a public nuisance actually exists at the subject Property(ies), based on the information as presented, and
potentially order the abatement of any such nuisance(s).
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds follows:

1. All of the Recitals above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein as if fully set forth
2. The conditions identified by the Notice(s) of the Public Nuisance, in relation to the Property(ies) identified on the

report as Attached hereto as Exhibit A including the requisite notices and supporting information as provided to the
Property owner and posted at the Property, and all hereby declared to be a public nuisance in the City of Leeds.

3. The identified public nuisance(s) is relation to the subject Property(ies) shall be abated and/or removed by the City,
if necessary, with costs assessed to the subject Property.

4. City staff is to create a report of the related costs for abating or removing any remaining nuisance(s) from the
Property and to provide such report back to the City Council for approval of the costs related to the same.

5. The provisions of the Resolution are severable. If any part of the Resolution is determined to be invalid,
unenforceable or unconstitutional, such determination shall not affect any other part of this Resolution.

6. The City Budget is amended to fund the deceleration of public Nuisance abatements.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12/14/2020
CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA
___________________________________ ______________________
DAVID MILLER, MAYOR               DATE

ATTEST:
 

AYES _______
NAYS _______

ABSENT FROM
VOTING _______

___________________________________ ABSTAIN _______
Toushi Arbitelle,
CITY CLERK

I, Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk of the City of Leeds, hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted by the City
Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on 12/14/2020

___________________________________
Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk

222


	Top
	1.	Ordinance 2020-12-01: Spectrum Franchise Renewal
	3-a Ordinance 2020.12.1 Leeds AL Franchise Agreement - Spectrum Communications

	2.	B20-000001: Request for an Alcoholic Beverage License to Virginia Abu Al Maati, /dba/ Mountainview Package Store at 8525 Whitfield Avenue; Suite 101
	3-b B20-000002 Mountainview Package Store.1

	3.	B20-000003 - ABC License - New - 6900 Buc-ee's Blvd
	B20-000003-Buc-ee&#39;s_Redacted

	4.	R20-002476 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7310 PARKWAY DR
	7310 PARKWAY

	5.	R20-002372 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7114 TRAMWAY CRT
	Tramway Crt

	6.	R20-002225 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 1332 BEECH ST
	Beech St

	7.	Minutes from November 16, 2020
	4-a Regular Council Meeting Minutes 11-16-2020

	8.	Mayor's Report: Mayor David Miller
	9.	Police Department: Chief Atkinson
	10.	Fire Department: Chief Parsons
	11.	Library: Library Director Carden
	12.	Municipal Court: Magistrate Roberts
	13.	Development Services Department: City Administrator Watson
	6-g Overtime report 11-03-2020 to 11-16-2020
	6-g Overtime report 11-17-2020 to 11-30-2020

	14.	Public Works Department: Public Works Director Warren
	15.	Ordinance 2020-12-01: Spectrum Franchise Renewal
	8-a O2020-12-01 Leeds AL Franchise Agreement - Spectrum Communications

	16.	Ordinance 2020-12-02: Amended Ordinance - updating principal payments - USDA project
	8-ba O2020-12-02 Supplemental Ordinance to O2020-06-02 GOW 2020-C
	8-bb O2020-12-02 Leeds Amended Warrant to United Bank
	8-bc O2020-12-02 Receipt for Warrant 11-17-20

	17.	Ordinance 2020-12-03: De-annexation Policy
	8-c O2020-12-03 Deannexation Policy.

	18.	Resolution 2020-12-01: Mountainview Package Store at 8525 Whitfield Avenue
	8-d R2020-12-01 B20-000002 Mountainview Package Store-8525 Whitfield Ave-package store.

	19.	Resolution 2020-12-02: Business License Tax Refund Request - Oneal
	8-e R2020-12-02 approval of tax refund request - Oneal.

	20.	Resolution 2020-12-03: Designating certain property as surplus and authorizing sale - vehicle
	8-f R2020-12-03 Designation of surplus property and authorization to sale-Fire Dept.

	21.	Resolution 2020-12-04: Approval of Alcohol License to Buc-ee's
	8-g R2020-12-04 B20-000003 Buc-ee's beer and wine.

	22.	Resolution 2020-12-05: City Employee Charity Drive Authorization
	8-h R2020-12-05 departmental holiday donation drive

	23.	Resolution 2020-12-06: Conveyance of Property to Jefferson Co Per 1998 Unification Agreement
	8-i R2020-12-06 authorizing conveyance of property to Jeff Co - per Unification Agreement

	24.	Resolution 2020-12-07: Purchase of Cedar Grove Cemetery Lots
	8-j1 R2020-12-07 authorizing purchase of cemetery lots - Cedar Grove
	Sale - Deed - Tucker to City of Leeds

	25.	R20-002476 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7310 PARKWAY DR
	8-x R20-002476 Public Nuisance 7310 Parkway Dr

	26.	R20-002372 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 7114 TRAMWAY CRT
	8-x R20-002372 Public Nuisance 7114 Tramway Ct

	27.	R20-002225 - PUBLIC NUISANCE - 1332 BEECH ST
	8-x R20-002225 Public Nuisance1332 Beech St

	Bottom

